
                  AGENDA FOR  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Chambers 
                                                                                                          401 E Third Street 

Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Open Meeting starting at 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, August 14, 2017 
 

Posted by 7:00 p.m., August 11, 2017 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes  
b. Payroll 
c. Staff Reports  
d. Request from Sunshine Community Center to conduct tag days on Friday and Saturday, September 1 & 

2, from 10 am to 2 pm. 
e. Request from Relay for Life to conduct a tag day on Saturday, August 26 from 9 am to 12 noon. 

4. Presentation of Bills and Claims 

5. Citizen Participation 

6. Business: 

a. Proclamation declaring August 21st – August 26th as Relay for Life Days. 
b. Consideration of a Resolution approving the use of incentives under the small business interest 

payment program by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing. 
c. Consideration of a Resolution authorizing honorary naming of the 600-1100 block of Madison Avenue 

“PFC Walter George Richards Way”. 
d. Consideration of a Request from Boiler Room, Friends of the Animals, and the Henry County Humane 

Society to use the City sidewalk and street immediately adjacent to the Boiler Room in conjunction with 
their Raise the Woof event on Thursday, August 17 from 4 to 11 pm. 

e. Consideration of an Ordinance vacating a portion of an alley running north and south adjacent to 918 & 
930 Harbour Street. 

f. Consideration of an Ordinance amending Section 115.117(B)(2) of the City Code as it pertains to the 
height of screening around beer gardens/outdoor eating areas. 

g. Consideration of a Resolution to award demolition work at 511 West Fifth Street (House), 522 East 
Seventh Street (House), 315 Elliott Street (Garage), and 521 Cambridge Road (Garage) to Dana 
Construction. 

h. Consideration of a Resolution to authorize the City Manager to execute a right-of-way agreement with 
Geneseo Communications. 

i. Consideration of a Resolution to authorize bidding on used ambulances from the Byron Ambulance 
Service. 
 
 
 
 

7. Council Communications: 
 

8. Announcements:  
 

9. Adjournment 

 



 

 
 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: August 11, 2017 
From: Gary Bradley, City Manager 
To: Mayor & Council 
RE:       Council Meeting of Monday, August 14, 2017 
 
REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. Enterprise Zone – The City finished 8th overall in the scoring, but there's not a direct 

correlation between scores and awarding of zones.   Though the state has 9 zones 
expiring, they appear to have exceeded the maximum number of zones in previous years, 
and are attempting to pare it back.  The next meeting of the board is September 16th in 
Chicago.  We will continue to lobby for inclusion in the program based on its proven 
impact on the region. 

 
2. Beer Garden Fences – Staff measured the height of existing fences surrounding beer 

gardens currently operating under a special use permit. Two fences were found to be 
below 6 ft. in height; those fences are at Illini Tap and Misty's. A portion of the fence at 
Illini tap stands at 5 feet 2 inches, while a portion of the fence at Misty's stands at 5 foot 9 
inches in height. 

 
3. Façade Program – The program continues to be popular among property owners in the 

downtown area.  An application was recently submitted by People’s National Bank and 
we have had discussions with a handful of other businesses in the area that are 
contemplating work improvements to their buildings. 
 

4. Rebuilding Together – Rebuilding Together Henry County's work day will be September 
16th. The group has selected three homes in Kewanee to complete improvements to this 
year; utilizing funds raised by the Kewanee Housing Coalition, the US Department of 
Agriculture, and the City’s targeted minor home repair program. Purchasing the materials 
and having work done by volunteers on the work day allows us to stretch the money 
further than if we were simply providing improvements through the grant program. 
 

5. Kewanee Life Skills Re-Entry Center  – The Warden at the KLSREC approached the 
City regarding the availability of resources from the facility to assist the City in cleanup 
after the Hog Days Parade, with the removal of trees in the cemetery and City parks, the 
decoration of the City's trash barrels, their ability to use the city's landscape waste in the 
production of compost which would be used in a horticulture program, producing fresh 
vegetables for our local food pantry and flowers for beautification in community projects. 
Staff is excited about the potential opportunities to work with the facility on projects that 
are beneficial to the city and the program's participants. 
 
 



 
 

Warden Williams also provided information about a fundraiser the facilities staff are 
participating in to raise money for Special Olympics.  Information about this worthwhile 
cause was sent to you in an email with a live link. 
 

6. Animal Issues/Social Media – Despite claims to the contrary on social media, there is no 
evidence that cases of animal neglect, abuse, or abandonment are on the rise in Kewanee 
(based on the number of reported cases during the past 4 years). Nonetheless, we are 
anticipating a large crowd to be present at the city council meeting to voice their concerns 
regarding these issues.   Neither the City Council nor staff are indifferent to such 
concerns. The city’s penalties are severe enough in consequence to dissuade such 
occurrences for any case that should be filed at the municipal level. For more severe 
cases, the opportunity exists to file state charges should the state's attorney feel they are 
warranted. 

 
7. Solar Farms  – There are ongoing discussions with a Consortium of solar energy 

providers regarding potential solar farm installations in Henry County, with specific 
interest in the Lininger Industrial Park and sites just outside of the city limits. 

 
8. 911 Dispatch  – There is still discussion as to which 911 Public Safety Answering Points 

will remain open.  A meeting is scheduled for August 21st to further refine the details.  As 
noted in the previous memo, the recommendation was to maintain existing services at all 
three PSAPs, with Kewanee and Henry County being designated as the primary 
answering points and Geneseo being designated as a secondary PSAP, contingent upon 
the Cities and County agreeing to maintain current levels of staffing for a period of not 
less than three years. The County has now indicated that they are unwilling to sign such 
an agreement. 
 

9. Trees in Berrien Park – Unfortunately, vandals hacked down the two ornamental trees 
in Berrien Park that were planted by the Garden Club.  The City will provide replacement 
trees and the club will provide the labor to put trees back in the park and will provide 
ongoing maintenance in the future.   
 

10. Hog Days – With Hog Days coming up, we’re trying to put as much of our resources as 
possible towards sprucing up the high visibility areas of town.   

 
11. Fall City Wide Cleanup Day – Staff is starting to plan another city wide cleanup for 

October 21 from 7 am – 12 noon, pending approval from the hospital for the use of their 
site. 

 
12. Back to School – School starts for both school districts on August 16, so everyone should 

be on the lookout for kids walking to school.  We will be working with both school 
districts to make sure any infrastructure issues in the area are wrapped up. 

 
 
 



 1 

COUNCIL MEETING 17-14 
JULY 24, 2017 

 
The City Council met in Council Chambers at 7:00 PM with the City Clerk calling the meeting 
to order and the following answering to roll call: 
   
  Andy Koehler  Council Member 
  Deann Schweitzer  Council Member 
  Mike Yaklich  Council Member 
  Steve Faber  Council Member 
  Steve Looney  Mayor 
 
News media present was as follows: 
 
  Will Buss    Star Courier 
              
The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 
 
Mayor Looney asked for a moment of silence for former Mayor Bruce Tossell and our troops still 
fighting overseas.   
 
Mayor Looney explained that the next items were placed on the consent agenda and were considered 
to be routine in nature to be passed as a whole with one vote of the Council. Mayor Looney 
requested that any member of the Council or the audience wishing to have an item removed from the 
consent agenda for individual consideration to make the request and the item would be removed and 
considered following the approval of the remaining consent items.  The consent agenda included 
minutes from the July 10, 2017 Council Meeting, payroll for the pay period ending July 8, 2017 in 
the amount of $208,313.39, and reports from Engineering, Finance & Administration, Public Works, 
and Bock, Inc.  The consent agenda was approved on a motion made by Council Member Faber and 
seconded by Council Member Schweitzer.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Bills submitted for approval totaling $1,215,596.14 were approved on a motion made by Council 
Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Council Member Koehler asked if the 
payment for K-9 school was the first for the police K9.  Chief Ainley confirmed it was the first class 
for that dog.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed.   
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 
Mayor Looney asked if anyone wished to speak regarding a non-agenda item.  There being no such 
requests Mayor Looney moved on to new business.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Mark Mikenas, Executive Vice President of the Kewanee Chamber of Commerce gave his semi-
annual report to the Council 
 



 2 

The minutes from the Plan Commission from its meeting on July 20, 2017 were approved on a 
motion made by Council Member Faber and seconded by Council Member Koehler.  Roll call 
showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Ordinance #3892 granting a special use permit to Abilities Plus for land located at 427 E 
Garfield Street for a sheltered care or board and care facility was approved on a motion made by 
Council Member Schweitzer and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Mayor Looney explained 
that those in favor of the request would be allowed to speak first.  Randy Carton, President of the 
Abilities Plus Board addressed the concerned voiced at the Public Hearing during the Plan 
Commission meeting.  Roberta Cinnamon, a parent of a client of Abilities Plus, expressed her 
support of Abilities Plus.  Mark Elbus expressed his concerns regarding the proposed sheltered 
care or board and care facility, stating the concern was lower property values.  Mayor Looney 
noted that he had spoken with a resident who previously was a property owner next to one 
Abilities Plus’ facilities.  That resident reported that his property value actually increased.  
Council Member Faber noted that he did not see a loss in approving the request.  Council 
Member Schweitzer stated that she was offended by the lack of understanding expressed by 
those in opposition to the facility.  Council Member Koehler noted that he was against a 
previously approved home on Hollis Street.  That home has been kept in top notch condition, 
with no complaints received regarding the house. Council Member Yaklich noted that he would 
be abstaining from the vote, as he was a landlord to Abilities Plus at the time and his wife was 
the realtor for the sale of the property.  Mayor Looney reported that when he was on the Abilities 
Plus Board he never received any complaints regarding their homes.  Roll call showed ayes, no 
nays.  The motion passed.  
 
Ordinance #3893 granting a special use permit to Tracy Glasgo, owner of Tracy Jeans, for 
property located at 125 West South Street #11 for the sale of alcoholic liquor by the serving was 
approved on a motion made by Council Member Faber and seconded by Council Member 
Schweitzer.  John Beaman, affiliated with Tracy Jeans, noted that the building in question was 
the old JC Beaman building in Midland Plaza.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion 
passed. 
 
Resolution #5062 awarding the 2017 annual street maintenance program to Advanced Asphalt 
Company, Inc. was approved on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by 
Council Member Koehler.  City Engineer Nobel noted that the timing of the program would 
depend on the timing of the approval of Illinois Department of Transportation.  No work would 
be scheduled over Labor Day weekend.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Resolution #5063 to authorize an agreement with Missman, Inc. for engineering services relating 
to Phase I Design and Project Development for the 2018 F.A.U, (Federal Aid Urban) East Street 
Improvement Project (South Street to Second Street) was approved on a motion made by Council 
Member Schweitzer and seconded by Council Member Yaklich.  City Engineer Nobel noted that 
Missman was one of the standby engineering firms previously selected by the Council.  The 
FAU project was a 2 year process, with this being the beginning of the process.  Roll call showed 
5 ayes, no nays. The motion passed. 
 



 3 

The recommendation of the Plan Commission regarding the height for the fence and screening to 
be installed around the beer garden/outdoor eating area at the Boiler Room 206 North Chestnut 
Street was approved on a motion made by Council Member Faber and seconded by Council 
Member Yaklich.  Anthony Segura, owner of the Boiler Room requested that the Council 
consider one of the two options that he had submitted to the Plan Commission and City Council.  
He explained that the ordinance states that the screening should be of adequate height, further 
noting that adequate could be different to everyone.  He requested that the ordinance be amended 
to be more specific.  Scott Wiegand noted that Mr. Segura had been a good neighbor.  Council 
Members held a discussion concerning the points addressed by Mr. Segura.  Council Member 
Schweitzer questioned the height of the other beer garden fences.  Roll call showed 3 ayes, 2 
nays, with Council Member Schweitzer and Mayor Looney casting the dissenting votes.  The 
motion passed. 
 
Resolution #5064 to authorize the use of the public sidewalk and street for beer garden concert 
events at 202 N. Chestnut Street on August 18 and August 31 was approved on a motion made 
by Council Member Faber and seconded by Council Member Schweitzer.  Council Member 
Faber noted that he appreciated the Boiler Room bringing in the concerts, but there was a noise 
problem that needed to be addressed.  Council Member Yaklich stated that he believed there had 
been an expansion of the special use by building a permanent stage.  Mayor Looney noted that 
there had been three complaints logged regarding the event.  He also noted that staff had me with 
Mr. Segura after the event to discuss details and concerns regarding the event.  Roll call showed 
4 ayes, 1 nay, with Council Member Yaklich casting the dissenting vote.  The motion passed. 
 
Ordinance #3886 amending sections 50.09-(A) and 50.09-(D) Rates and Rules for Solid Waste 
Pickup and Section 50.10-(E)(3)(A)-1 Solid Waste Transfer Station Standard Rates of Chapter 
50 Solid Waste Management, of Title V Public Works; and Sections 92.06, Rates and Charges, 
and 92.08(B) Placement of Headstones Permit Required, of Chapter 92: Cemeteries of the 
Kewanee City Code, establishing fees for use of City cemeteries and their services was approved 
on a motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member Schweitzer.  
Mayor Looney noted that the ordinance had been previously tabled allowing staff to collect more 
data.  That data had been supplied.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Ordinance #3894 to amend Section 35.37 Fire Rescue Ambulance Service Fees of the Kewanee 
City Code was approved on a motion made by Council Member Faber and seconded by Council 
Member Schweitzer.  City Manager Bradley explained that the one change to the fee schedule 
was to add an additional level of refusal.  At the ALS level of ambulance service, the paramedic 
can treat a patient for diabetic related emergencies.  With the treatment, the patient would no 
longer need transport to the hospital.  This new level of refusal would be charged in those 
situations.  Roll call showed 4 ayes, 1 nay, with Council Member Koehler casting the dissenting 
vote.  The motion passed. 
 
Ordinance #3895 declaring a 1990 Alexis Spartan fire engine as excess was approved on a 
motion made by Council Member Yaklich and seconded by Council Member Faber.  City 
Manager Bradley reported that with the purchase of the new fire engine, it was beneficial to 
rotate one of the existing fire engines out of service to save on insurance and maintenance fees.  
Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 



 4 

 
Resolution #5058 to authorize the City Manager to execute a right-of-way agreement with 
Geneseo Communications was tabled on a motion made by Council Member Faber and seconded 
by Council Member Schweitzer.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Council Member Schweitzer extended her condolences to the friends and family of Bruce 
Tossell. 
 
Council Member Koehler thanked the volunteers of the Prairie Chicken Festival. 
 
Council Member Yaklich also extended his condolence to the Tossell family. 
 
Council Member Faber extended his condolences to the Tossell family.  He also reported that the 
Prairie Chicken Festival committee had 37 vendors and had to turn away 10 additional vendors.  
There will be some adjustments made for the next festival to accommodate all of the vendors. 
 
Mayor Looney thanked the Prairie Chicken Festival volunteers.  He also thanked the Council for 
covering for him at the previous meeting.  He thanked city staff for putting together all of the 
information for the large agenda for the evening.  He also thanked the Plan Commission 
members for the work they do for the City.  Finally, he extended his sincere condolence to the 
Tossell family. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
City Clerk Edwards announced that the Main Street railroad crossing was closed for repairs 
beginning Monday, July 24 and would last approximately 10 days.  Detours around Main off of 
West Third and West Fifth Streets would be open to route traffic onto North Tremont Street.  
The Park Street crossing would be closed for repairs and was expected to be reopened on 
Wednesday, July 26. 
 
There being no further business, Council Member Schweitzer moved to adjourn the meeting and 
Council Member Faber seconded the motion.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The meeting 
adjourned at 8:32 PM. 
 
___________________________________________         ________________________________  
MELINDA EDWARDS, CITY CLERK   DATE APPROVED 



City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Demolition, Building Maintenance, Targeted Home Repair

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 

Needed

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No P / C

Taylor Mark 117 E Seventh St 7 6 17

Front porch/3 season 
room roof falling in and 
foundation under porch is 
failing.

Spoke to Taylor on the 
phone.  Stated he would get 
back to me in a week to 
advise when he can have 
something done with the 
porch. 7/13 Taylor stated he 
is talking with a guy to 
decide what he wants to do 
with the porch and will get 
back to me in a few days. Yes P

Good Stephen 112 W Second St 7 7 17

Concern over a piece of 
cornice that has come 
disconnected from the 
building.

7/7 Had a phone 
conversation with Good and 
sent an email with a letter 
concerning the façade of the 
building.  Included photos 
and information about the 
City Façade Improvement 
Program. Yes Yes C

Henry Co As Trustee 123 S Jackson St 7 7 17 Dangerous Building.

Fast-Track Demolition 
process started.  7/17 All 
title searches completed by 
CAO.  Signs posted. Yes Yes C

Schwigen Joseph 328 Rice St 7 7 17 Dangerous Building.

Fast-Track Demolition 
process started.  7/17 All 
title searches completed by 
CAO.  Signs posted. Yes Yes P

Reece Randall 606 E Eleventh St 7 7 17 Dangerous Building.

Fast-Track Demolition 
process started.  7/17 All 
title searches completed by 
CAO.  Signs posted. Yes Yes P

Davis Boyd 611 N Elm St 7 7 17 Dangerous Building.

Fast-Track Demolition 
process started.  7/17 All 
title searches completed by 
CAO.  Signs posted. P

Girken Mary 706 Pleasant St 7 7 17 Dangerous Building.

Fast-Track Demolition 
process started.  7/17 All 
title searches completed by 
CAO.  Signs posted. P

Wall Shawn 314 S Cottage St 7 12 17

Missing roofing material 
on the East part of the 
roof.

Mailed letter to the last 
known address of 
responsible party.  Offered 
the Targeted Minor Home 
Repair Program. 7/19 Met 
with Polly Moore at City Hall.  
Gave application for 
TMHRP. C

Tolliver Gregory 711 W Division St 7 13 17
Demolition of garage with 
no permit.

Notice posted advising to 
obtain demolition permit. 
7/17 Demolition permit 
applied for and issued. N/A N/A No No P

Moraski Chris 316 W Division St 7 17 17

Dilapidated house in need 
of demolition.  Owner 
applied for Demolition 
permit and grant.

7/17 Demolition permit 
issued. Yes N/A

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd) Phone #

Date
Last Name First Name

Mid 
Init House #

.N S E 
W. Street Name Disposition Follow-Up Notes

Date of 
NTA

NTA 
Result



Ellis Alfred 909 Pleasantview Ave 7 20 17 Illegal fence in front yard.   

7/20 Advised to remove 
every other picket so the 
fence has some viewability. 
8/10 Complete. N/A N/A No No P



7-Day Page 3

Page 3 of 10

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

Subject has 
case file in 
CSO office

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 
Needed

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No  Yes / No P / C

Posted 330 McKinley Ave 7 3 17

Trash bags in driveway. 
Porch full of trash. Tires and 
trash in backyard. 7/10 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 413 1/2 S Park St 7 6 17

Lumber, cement blocks, full 
trash cans, numerous tarps, 
too much to itemize.  
Property in need of general 
clean up efforts.

7/13 Progress made. 7/20 
Progress made.  7/27 
Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 229 S Walnut St 7 7 17
Trash bags stored on city 
right of way. 7/14 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 209 S Vine St 7 7 17

Couch on city right of way, 
bed mattress and frame on 
front porch. 7/18 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 501 E Prospect St 7 7 17

Television on front porch.  
Unlicensed/inoperable Ford 
truck by alley. 7/14 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

650 Mission Dr 7 7 17

Pool partially torn apart, car 
tires in front yard, kids toys 
all over, tall weeds. 7/13 Progress made. Yes C

Burlington Northern 7 10 17

Called and left voicemail for 
the Roadmaster earler this 
month to request they mow 
the railroad right of way 
before the Prairie Chicken 
Festival.

Received a return phone call 
on 7/10.  Stated they would 
get the right of way uptown 
mowed.  7/14 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 710 S Main St 7 10 17

Unlicensed/inoperable Silver 
car in back yard IL H544925 
expired. 7/21 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 1602 Lake St 7 10 17

Box springs, trash, wood, 
tires, furniture.  Property in 
need of clean up efforts 
around the garage.

7/17 Progress made. 7/24 
Progress made. 7/31 
Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 135 E Church St 7 11 17

Indoor furniture, luggage, 
television, box of glass jars, 
large overflowing garbage 
can. 7/18 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

324 S Cottage St 7 12 17

Complaint of trash, tall 
weeds, mattresses, and junk 
all over.

There is a some tall weeds 
but the rest of the complaint 
was unfounded.  Spoke with 
Nikki at People's National 
Bank.  The property is in 
foreclosure.  PNB has been 
mowing the property.  I asked 
if they could cut down the 
taller weeds around the house 
and garage.  Nikki said she 
would forward the request for 
me. N/A N/A No No Yes C

Date of 
NTA

Date of 7-day 
Notice

Offense/ Nuisance

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)Last Name First Name

Mid 
Init

House 
#

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name Phone #

NTA 
Result7-Day Follow-up Result



7-Day Page 4

Page 4 of 10

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

Subject has 
case file in 
CSO office

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 
Needed

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No  Yes / No P / C

Date of 
NTA

Date of 7-day 
Notice

Offense/ Nuisance

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)Last Name First Name

Mid 
Init

House 
#

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name Phone #

NTA 
Result7-Day Follow-up Result

314 S Cottage St 7 12 17

Complaint of trash all over 
and an abandoned trailer 
with trash blowing all over.

Property is mowed.  No trash 
on the ground.  There is a 
utility/dump trailer in the back 
yard with some debris in it but 
not overflowing or blowing 
around.  House is lacking 
roofing and a letter will be 
mailed to the owner of record. N/A N/A No No Yes C

Posted 223 E McClure St 7 12 17

Weeds on West side of 
garage and pool, blue plastic 
tubs in driveway, gate on 
pool fence missing, carpet 
on ground by pool fence. 7/19 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 632 E Ninth St 7 12 17

Brush and litter behind 
garage.  Bushes 
overhanging sidewalks on 
both side streets. 7/19 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 322 S Walnut St 7 12 17

Accumulation of trash at 
back door and front door.  
Some torn open and some in 
bags. 7/19 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Patterson Nancy 329 N Main St 7 12 17
Tall weeds behind the 
building.

Contacted Patterson by phone 
and asked them to trim the 
weeds before the weekend for 
the Prairie Chicken Festival.  
7/13 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 915 N Vine St 7 13 17

Accumulation of trash in 
front yard and driveway.  
Chickens in back yard.

7/17 Trash gone, chickens will 
be moved soon. 7/31 
Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 807 E Second St 7 13 17
Furniture in front yard, tall 
weeds and grass. 7/20 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Jones Cody 301 E Seventh St 7 13 17

Unlicensed/inoperable car 
and truck in back yard.  
Truck bed full of junk.  Tall 
grass and weeds.

7/20 Progress made. 8/3 
Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 820 May St 7 13 17

Trash on front porch, 
television in front yard, two 
inoperable riding lawn 
mowers, tires, tall grass and 
weeds. 7/20 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 912 May St 7 13 17
Unlicensed/inoperable car in 
back yard. 7/20 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 220 Willard St 7 13 17
Discarded furniture on city 
right of way. 7/20 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Toliver Gregory 711 W Division St 7 13 17

Large pile of demolition 
debris from a garage.  No 
permit issued.

7/17 Posted Notice Of 
Requested Response. 7/17 
Demolition permit applied for 
and issued. 8/7 Progress 
made. Yes P



7-Day Page 5

Page 5 of 10

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

Subject has 
case file in 
CSO office

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 
Needed

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No  Yes / No P / C

Date of 
NTA

Date of 7-day 
Notice

Offense/ Nuisance

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)Last Name First Name

Mid 
Init

House 
#

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name Phone #

NTA 
Result7-Day Follow-up Result

Posted 205 Dodge St 7 13 17

Blue tarp on ground, pile of 
lumber in front of garage, 
unlicensed/inoperable black 
SUV, discarded kitchen 
table, unlicensed camper.

7/20 Posted Notice Of 
Requested Response. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 327 Goodrich St 7 14 17

Grass blown into the 
roadway.  Pool with no fence 
or permit.

7/17 Grass removed.  7/18 
Advised they will get a fence 
permit. Yes P

Posted 211 Elliott St 7 14 17
Chickens being kept on the 
property. 7/21 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 713 Henry St 7 17 17
Discarded furniture on city 
right of way. 7/24 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 301 Payson St 7 17 17

Trash and misc items at front 
door.  Property in need of 
general clean-up efforts. P

Posted 414 Green St 7 18 17
Discarded furniture in front 
yard.  3 arm chairs, 1 reliner. 7/25 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 403 S Chestnut St 7 19 17
Bricks, tarp, bags of trash, 
abandoned bike in front yard. 7/21 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 306 E Prospect St 7 20 17
Discarded television by the 
roadway. 7/27 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 418 S Tremont St 7 20 17

Stove and pile of wood on 
North side of house, trash 
bags and demolition debris 
from porch in front yard. 7/27 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 508 S Chestnut St 7 20 17
Grass blown into the 
roadway.   7/21 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 540 Rockwell St 7 20 17

Bushes and trees 
overhanging sidewalk on 
Beach St. 7/27 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 624 Beach St 7 20 17

Bushes and trees 
overhanging sidewalk on 
Beach St. 7/27 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

610 E Third St 7 24 17
Discarded furniture (couch) 
by road side. P

Posted 314 S Cottage St 7 24 17
Trailer full of trash and 
debris in back yard. C

Posted 107 Goodrich St 7 24 17
Unlicensed/inoperable white 
truck by alley. 7/31 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 424 Willard St 7 24 17
Two piles of tree limbs in 
driveway. C

Posted 829 Wilson St 7 25 17
Trash and bedroom furniture 
in front yard. 8/1 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 405 S Chestnut St 7 25 17
Unlicensed/inoperable 
vehicle in front yard. 8/1 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 830 Columbus St 7 25 17
Unlicensed/inoperable car IL 
FTC1998. 8/1 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 610 E Third St 7 25 17
Discarded furniture by 
roadside. 8/1 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P



7-Day Page 6

Page 6 of 10

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Nuisance Tracking   Trash/Junk/Litter/Inoperable&Abandoned Vehicles

Subject has 
case file in 
CSO office

Pictures 
on file

Additional 
Follow-up 
Needed

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Mo Day Yr  Yes / No  Yes / No  Yes / No P / C

Date of 
NTA

Date of 7-day 
Notice

Offense/ Nuisance

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)Last Name First Name

Mid 
Init

House 
#

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name Phone #

NTA 
Result7-Day Follow-up Result

Posted 1100 W Division St 7 25 17 Couch on front porch. 8/4 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

423 N Cottage St 7 26 17

Complaint of a yellow 
substance in the creek 
behind this address.

Case investigated through 
public works and engineering.  
EPA has taken over the case. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 413 S Park St 7 26 17
Tires, ladder, saw horses, 55 
gallon drum all in front yard. 8/2 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 231 S Burr St 7 27 17
Grass blown into the 
roadway. 7/31 Complete. N/A N/A No No No C

Posted 124 Dwight St 7 27 17
Furniture and bedding on 
front porch. 8/3 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 319 E Prospect St 7 27 17

Large amount of tree 
branches cut down and piled 
in front yard. 8/3 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 519 E Ninth St 7 28 17
Discarded furniture by 
roadside. 8/4 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P

Posted 324 E South St 7 28 17
Stove and trash in back 
yard. 8/9 Complete. N/A N/A No No No P



Weeds Page 7

Page 7 of 10

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Weed Notice Tracking

Handed 
In For 

Mowing

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Yr # Mo Day Yr Mo Day Yr  Yes/No P / C
17 213 Paxton Patricia 821 Harrison St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 214 Feucht Earl 1018 Harrison St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 215 Brants Jacob 943 Simpson St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 216 Mayorga Annette 109 Lyle St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 217 Good Judy 612 Willow St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 218 Maarman Elizabeth 120 S Grace Ave 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 219 Diaz Evangelina 220 Willard St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 220 Keller Madolyn 234 W Church St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 221 Stinson Kerry 341 Whitney Ave 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 222 DeClercq John 430 W Mill St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 223 West Justin 111 Tenney St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 224 Longeville Lance 225 Tenney St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 225 Dixon Robert 1306 W Division St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Mowed No P
17 226 Phelps Jerry 212 W McClure St 7 6 17 7 11 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 227 Guerrero Ines 310 Helmer St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 228 Bodine Gabrielle 817 Columbus St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 229 Roumbos George 136 Smith St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 230 Elmore Kathleen 140 Tenney St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 231 PIP-West LLC 221 Tenney St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 232 Hodge Willie 726 Dewey Ave 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 233 Grabbe Penny 800 S West St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 234 Cardenas Miguel 342 S Cottage St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 235 Fitzgerrel Paul 336 S Cottage St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 236 Karamajanes George 418 Prospect Pl 7 7 17 7 12 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 237 Clarke Kevin 432 Prospect Pl 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 238 Karamajanes George 319 E Prospect St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 239 Warren Beverly 1405 W Prospect St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 240 Sizemore Michael 620 Commercial St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 241 Russell Audrey 624 Commercial St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 242 Murray Casey 117 S Grace Ave 7 7 17 7 12 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 243 Dixon Robert 419 S Grove St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Mowed No P
17 244 VerVynck Elizabeth 900 Rockwell St 7 7 17 7 12 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 245 McMillan Ronald 831 Rockwell St 7 11 17 7 16 17 Mowed No P
17 246 Bermudez Eduardo 106 Houle Ave 7 11 17 7 16 17 Mowed No P
17 247 Dixon Robert 418 E Mill St 7 11 17 7 16 17 Mowed No P
17 248 Parker Philip 549 Edwards St 7 11 17 7 16 17 Mowed No P
17 249 Walker Julie 218 E Kellogg St 7 11 17 7 16 17 Mowed No P
17 250 Lappin Sharon 831 Elmwood Ave 7 11 17 7 16 17 Mowed No P
17 251 Saucedo Sofia 1520 Lake St 7 11 17 7 16 17 Not Mowed Yes P

Weed 
Notice 

Number
Date of Weed 

Notice Follow-Up Date
Follow-up ResultLast Name Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)

Phone 
NumberFirst Name

 Mid 
Init

House 
Number

.N 
S E 
W.



Weeds Page 8

Page 8 of 10

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Weed Notice Tracking

Handed 
In For 

Mowing

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Yr # Mo Day Yr Mo Day Yr  Yes/No P / C

Weed 
Notice 

Number
Date of Weed 

Notice Follow-Up Date
Follow-up ResultLast Name Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)

Phone 
NumberFirst Name

 Mid 
Init

House 
Number

.N 
S E 
W.

17 252 Hagerman Larry 1130 Western Ave 7 11 17 7 16 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 254 Youngfeldt Sandra 328 Beach St So 7 12 17 7 17 17 Mowed No P
17 255 Hollis Walter 824 Wilson St 7 12 17 7 17 17 Mowed No P
17 256 Reiter Dennis 529 Rockwell St 7 12 17 7 17 17 Mowed No P
17 257 Singh Baljinder 214 N East St 7 12 17 7 17 17 Mowed No P
17 258 Scott Jerry 1314 Lake St 7 12 17 7 17 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 259 Guereca Jose 1114 June St 7 12 17 7 17 17 Mowed No P
17 260 Catton Joey 1118 June St 7 12 17 7 17 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 261 Beaman Frieda 821 Pleasant St 7 12 17 7 17 17 Mowed No P
17 262 Buswell Megan 330 McKinley Ave 7 13 17 7 18 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 263 Smith Phyllis 547 Pine St 7 13 17 7 18 17 Mowed No P
17 264 Hamilton Cody 522 Pine St 7 13 17 7 18 17 Mowed No P
17 266 Nanninga Melissa 122 E Seventh St 7 14 17 7 19 17 Mowed No P
17 267 Ruiz Roberto 634 N Elm St 7 14 17 7 19 17 Mowed No P
17 270 Dobbels Louis 910 May St 7 14 17 7 19 17 Mowed No P
17 271 Morey Karen 500 N Grove St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Mowed No P
17 272 Daniel Jay 420 N Grove St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Mowed No P
17 273 Neirynck Matthew 730 Gilbert St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 274 Summy John 814 Pine St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Mowed No P
17 275 Stead Timothy 125 Beach St So 7 17 17 7 23 17 Mowed No P
17 276 Rosebeck Lynne 349 W Division St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Mowed No P
17 277 Braden Jann 305 Payson St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Mowed No P
17 279 Roumbos Sophia 718 E Fourth St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 280 Nebinger Daniel 409 S Washington St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Mowed No P
17 281 Pease Thomas 716 Pine St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 282 Scott Jerry 1221 Lake St 7 17 17 7 23 17 Mowed No P
17 283 Daniel Jay 430 N Grove St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 284 Sams Lindsay 842 Pine St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 285 Warda Art 519 Pine St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 286 Pereda Alberto 913 Elmwood Ave 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 287 Hayes John 914 Elmwood Ave 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 288 Witte Timothy 320 E Tenth St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 289 Scott Dennis 917 N Main St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 290 BJS Rentals LLC 214 W Eighth St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 291 Olson Merril 721 N Chestnut St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Mowed No P
17 292 Huggins Michael 829 Florence St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 293 Huggins Michael 830 Florence St 7 18 17 7 24 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 294 Ark Tabernacle Church 200 W Eighth St 7 20 17 7 25 17 Mowed No P
17 295 Ross Keith 314 W Prospect St 7 20 17 7 25 17 Mowed No P



Weeds Page 9

Page 9 of 10

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Weed Notice Tracking

Handed 
In For 

Mowing

Proactive    
Or      

Complaint
Yr # Mo Day Yr Mo Day Yr  Yes/No P / C

Weed 
Notice 

Number
Date of Weed 

Notice Follow-Up Date
Follow-up ResultLast Name Street Name

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)

Phone 
NumberFirst Name

 Mid 
Init

House 
Number

.N 
S E 
W.

17 296 VanDeMark William 820 N Main St 7 20 17 7 25 17 Mowed No P
17 297 Conley Terry 1011 N Elm St 7 20 17 7 25 17 Mowed No P
17 298 Quinn Nathan 1002 Madison Ave 7 21 17 7 26 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 299 Painter Valerie 418 S Tremont St 7 21 17 7 26 17 Mowed No P
17 300 Nimrick Shery 820 May St 7 21 17 7 26 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 301 Grice Jason 650 Mission Dr 7 21 17 7 26 17 Mowed No P
17 303 Taylor Judity 1335 Rockwell St 7 24 17 7 29 17 Mowed No C
17 304 Karpel Phebe 110 N Walnut St 7 26 17 7 31 17 Mowed No P
17 305 Laube Dale 619 Elliott St 7 26 17 7 31 17 Mowed No P
17 306 Diaz Julian 405 S Chestnut St 7 26 17 7 31 17 Mowed No P
17 308 Karamajanes George 305 Helmer St 7 26 17 7 31 17 Mowed No P
17 309 Perez Mario 903 W Third St 7 26 17 7 31 17 Mowed No P
17 310 Valdez Salomon 716 W Third St 7 26 17 7 31 17 Mowed No P
17 311 Blair Sean 714 E Fifth St 7 26 17 7 31 17 Mowed No P
17 312 Holvay Steve 403 W Division St 7 27 17 8 1 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 313 Hulslander Wayne 323 W Division St 7 27 17 8 1 17 Mowed No P
17 314 Graham Kyle 5 Percil Ct 7 27 17 8 1 17 Mowed No P
17 315 Melbourne Mark 211 E Kellogg St 7 27 17 8 1 17 Mowed No P
17 316 Chavez Jose 348 Willard St 7 27 17 8 1 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 317 Strode Linda 223 E McClure St 7 27 17 8 1 17 Mowed No P
17 318 Grayson Ginger 124 Dwight St 7 27 17 8 1 17 Not Mowed Yes P
17 319 Stone Dustin 406 Rice St 7 28 17 8 2 17 Mowed No P



Community Development EOM Report.xls Page 10

Page 10 of 10

City of Kewanee Community Development Department
Miscellaneous Activity

Mo Day YrLast Name First Name
Mid 
Init Phone #

Date Of 
Incident

Incident Description
House 

#

.N 
S E 
W. Street Name / Location

Suffix 
(St, 
Ave, 
Blvd)

















CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
WATER AUDIT DATA  - LOSSES

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  UPDATED AUGUST 9, 2017

15-Mar
15-Apr

15-May
15-Jun
15-Jul

15-Aug
15-Sep
15-Oct
15-Nov
15-Dec
16-Jan
16-Feb
16-Mar
16-Apr

16-May
16-Jun
16-Jul

16-Aug
16-Sep
16-Oct
16-Nov
16-Dec
17-Jan
17-Feb
17-Mar
17-Apr

17-May
17-Jun
17-Jul

2017 YTD
2016
2015

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
JULY 2017 WATER LOSS @ 28.4%
2017 YTD @ 31.1%;  2016 YEAR @ 31.2%; 2015 YEAR @ 49.1%
PEAK LOSS - MARCH 2015 @ 58.4%

JULY 2017 FIN.WATER AVE.DAILY FLOW @ 1.02 MGD
2017 YTD @ 1.05 MGD ; 2016 YEAR @ 1.11 MGD;  2015 YEAR @ 1.60 MGD;
PEAK FLOW - MARCH 2015 @ 1.90 MGD

JULY 2017 MONTHLY PRODUCTION COST @ $22,740
2017 YTD @ $22,569/M; 2016 YEAR @ $25,059/M; 2015 YEAR @ $35,244/M
PEAK PRODUCTION COST - MARCH 2015 @ $41,093

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

50.0%

55.0%

60.0%

Apparent & Real Water Losses - %

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

 $35,000

 $40,000

 $45,000

Jan-15 Apr-15 Jul-15 Oct-15 Jan-16 Apr-16 Jul-16 Oct-16 Jan-17 Apr-17 Jul-17

MONTHLY WATER PRODUCTION COSTS



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
    WATER AUDIT DATA - LOSSES
   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

WATER LOSS DATA - 2015/16/17
DATE RAW FINISHED AMOUNT WWTP CITY TOTAL LOSS AWWA

WATER WATER BILLED USEAGE OTHER ACC.FOR % MAX %
YR-2010 57.6 48.3 24.4 2 0.13 26.5 45.1% 15.0%
YR-2011 58.5 49.6 23.8 2 0.13 25.9 47.7% 15.0%
YR-2012 61 51.5 23.5 2 0.13 25.6 50.2% 15.0%
YR-2013 57.1 48.5 23.1 2 0.13 25.2 48.0% 15.0%
YR-2014 67.6 53.9 23.6 2 0.13 25.7 52.3% 15.0%

Jan-15 68.44 56.8 22.24 2 0.13 24.4 57.1% 15.0%
Feb-15 63.13 50.9 22 1.81 0.13 23.9 52.9% 15.0%
15-Mar 72.87 59.1 22.13 2.28 0.13 24.5 58.4% 15.0%
15-Apr 66.66 55.1 21.85 2.2 0.13 24.2 56.1% 15.0%

15-May 66.11 53.3 21.62 2.1 0.13 23.9 55.3% 15.0%
15-Jun 62.19 49.5 22.19 2.1 0.13 24.4 50.7% 15.0%
15-Jul 59.4 47.9 22.82 2.14 0.13 25.1 47.7% 15.0%

15-Aug 58.93 48.4 23.31 2.14 0.13 25.6 47.1% 15.0%
15-Sep 55.8 45.9 23.51 2.07 0.13 25.7 44.0% 15.0%
15-Oct 56.1 45.6 24.64 1.96 0.13 26.7 41.4% 15.0%
15-Nov 45.4 36.8 22.38 1.8 0.73 24.9 32.3% 15.0%
15-Dec 43.2 34.7 22.67 1.2 0.13 24.0 30.8% 15.0%
16-Jan 45.3 36.4 21.15 2 0.13 23.3 36.0% 15.0%
16-Feb 41.1 33.1 22.21 1.18 0.13 23.5 28.9% 15.0%
16-Mar 42.7 34.4 22.16 1.02 0.42 23.6 31.4% 15.0%
16-Apr 43.2 33.3 20.82 1.06 0.13 22.0 33.8% 15.0%

16-May 44.4 35.4 21 1.4 0.13 22.5 36.4% 15.0%
16-Jun 44.3 35.1 23.11 1.29 0.13 24.5 30.1% 15.0%
16-Jul 42.4 34.3 23.15 1.33 0.13 24.6 28.3% 15.0%

16-Aug 40.5 33.9 23.12 1.18 0.13 24.4 27.9% 15.0%
16-Sep 39.1 32.4 21.95 1.05 0.13 23.1 28.6% 15.0%
16-Oct 41.6 32.2 22.03 0.88 0.13 23.0 28.4% 15.0%
16-Nov 37.8 30.5 21.41 0.64 0.13 22.2 27.3% 15.0%
16-Dec 42.4 33.8 20.21 1.02 0.33 21.6 36.2% 15.0%
17-Jan 44 35.2 21.64 1.16 0.13 22.9 34.9% 15.0%
17-Feb 37.3 30.2 22.4 0.65 0.13 23.2 23.2% 15.0%
17-Mar 38.9 31.8 20.09 0.72 0.197 21.0 33.9% 15.0%
17-Apr 36.7 30.2 20 0.47 0.13 20.6 31.8% 15.00%

17-May 39.1 31.7 20.22 0.2 0.49 20.9 34.0% 15.00%
17-Jun 38.8 32.8 21.9 0.167 0.78 22.8 30.3% 15.00%
17-Jul 38.9 31.6 21.93 0.157 0.54 22.6 28.4% 15.00%

2017 YTD 273.7 223.5 148.18 3.524 2.397 154.1 31.1% 15.00%
2016 504.8 404.74 262.32 14.05 2.05 278.42 31.2% 15.00%
2015 718.23 583.88 271.36 23.8 2.16 297.32 49.1% 15.00%



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
    WATER AUDIT DATA - LOSSES
   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

WATER LOSSES - 2015/16/17

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

Apparent & Real Water Losses - %
Apparent & Real Water Loss

AWWA Recommended Maximum - 15%

Poly. (Apparent & Real Water Loss)

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

45.0

50.0

55.0

60.0

65.0

Finished Water Produced vs Billed & Accounted For Water-MG

Finished Water
Billed & Accounted For
Poly. (Finished Water)
Poly. (Billed & Accounted For)

AWWA RECOMMENDED MAXIMUM @ 15%



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
       WATER AUDIT DATA - AVERAGE DAILY FLOWS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

    FINISHED WATER -  AVERAGE DAILY FLOWS
DATE FINISHED AVERAGE DAILY FLOW RAW ADF

WATER MG / DAY   NOTES: WATER MG/DAY

2010 48.3 1.59 57.6 1.89
2011 49.6 1.63 58.5 1.92
2012 51.5 1.69 61 2.01
2013 48.5 1.59 57.1 1.88
2014 53.9 1.77 67.6 2.22

Jan-15 56.8 1.83 68.44 2.21
Feb-15 50.9 1.82 63.13 2.25
15-Mar 59.1 1.90 72.87 2.35
15-Apr 55.1 1.84 66.66 2.22

15-May 53.3 1.72 66.11 2.13
15-Jun 49.5 1.65 62.19 2.07
15-Jul 47.9 1.55 59.4 1.92

15-Aug 48.4 1.56 58.93 1.90
15-Sep 45.9 1.53 55.8 1.86
15-Oct 45.6 1.47 56.1 1.81
15-Nov 36.8 1.23 45.4 1.51
15-Dec 34.7 1.12 43.2 1.39
16-Jan 36.4 1.17 45.3 1.46
16-Feb 33.1 1.14 41.1 1.42
16-Mar 34.4 1.11 42.7 1.38
16-Apr 33.3 1.11 43.2 1.44

16-May 35.4 1.14 44.4 1.43
16-Jun 35.1 1.17 44.3 1.48
16-Jul 34.3 1.11 42.4 1.37

16-Aug 33.9 1.09 40.5 1.31
16-Sep 32.4 1.08 39.1 1.30
16-Oct 32.2 1.04 41.6 1.34
16-Nov 30.5 1.02 37.8 1.26
16-Dec 33.8 1.09 Vehicle hits FH, 42.4 1.37
17-Jan 35.2 1.14 44 1.42
17-Feb 30.2 1.08 37.3 1.33
17-Mar 31.8 1.03 38.9 1.25
17-Apr 30.2 1.01 36.7 1.22

17-May 31.7 1.02 39.1 1.26
17-Jun 32.8 1.09 FH Flow Testing/Flushing 38.8 1.29
17-Jul 31.6 1.02 FH Flow Testing/Flushing 38.9 1.25

2017 YTD 223.5 1.05
2016 404.8 1.11
2015 583.9 1.60



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
 WATER LOSS AUDIT CHART - AVERAGE DAILY FLOWS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

2.00

2.25

2.50

FINISHED/RAW WATER - AVERAGE DAILY 
FLOWS MGD AVERAGE DAILY FLOW - MG

RAW WATER - AVERAGE DAILY
FLOW

Poly. (AVERAGE DAILY FLOW -
MG)

Poly. (RAW WATER - AVERAGE
DAILY FLOW)

AVERAGE / YEAR
2010 - 2014 MONTHLY AVERAGE BEGINNING JANUARY 2015



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
    WATER AUDIT DATA - POWER CONSUMPTION/COSTS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

POWER CONSUMPTION - KWHs KWH COST @
DATE #1/NWTP WELL #3 #4/SWTP WELL #5 T. KWHs x 1000 $0.081/KWH

Jan-15 73800 104320 136800 17016 331936 332 $26,887
Feb-15 69900 85440 122640 31890 309870 310 $25,099
15-Mar 43800 77120 154320 41496 316736 317 $25,656
15-Apr 63000 64000 149280 40020 316300 316 $25,620

15-May 83700 80960 152400 25380 342440 342 $27,738
15-Jun 57300 9280 145920 41406 253906 254 $20,566
15-Jul 81600 9280 146880 24108 261868 262 $21,211

15-Aug 106800 20480 134640 9144 271064 271 $21,956
15-Sep 103540 640 147840 8424 260444 260 $21,096
15-Oct 90600 8640 134160 16662 250062 250 $20,255
15-Nov 89700 21760 101280 3690 216430 216 $17,531
15-Dec 76800 18560 112560 4320 212240 212 $17,191
16-Jan 106800 42560 78720 7836 235916 236 $19,109
16-Feb 85800 24000 100320 756 210876 211 $17,081
16-Mar 99300 29440 74160 8790 211690 212 $17,147
16-Apr 69300 12160 85440 21570 188470 188 $15,266

16-May 69900 15680 94080 18546 198206 198 $16,055
16-Jun 50100 640 113520 26370 190630 191 $15,441
16-Jul 114000 640 83520 3768 201928 202 $16,356

16-Aug 164700 3840 32400 1206 202146 202 $16,374
16-Sep 155400 20480 22800 438 199118 199 $16,129
16-Oct 103800 640 85920 798 191158 191 $15,484
16-Nov 58500 960 118560 3738 181758 182 $14,722
16-Dec 77700 640 81120 31626 191086 191 $15,478
17-Jan 77100 640 96720 28872 203332 203 $16,470
17-Feb 86700 960 48480 31338 167478 167 $13,566
17-Mar 83400 640 59040 35442 178522 179 $14,460
17-Apr 82800 1600 49440 30258 164098 164 $13,292

17-May 62100 6080 55440 37074 160694 161 $13,016
17-Jun 110400 15360 32640 22086 180486 180 $14,619
17-Jul 75020 8267 61504 34044 178835 179 $14,486



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
    WATER AUDIT DATA - POWER CONSUMPTION/COSTS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

150

200

250

300

350

400

POWER CONSUMPTION - KWHs x 1000

POWER CONSUMPTION

Poly. (POWER CONSUMPTION)

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

POWER COSTS @ $.081 / KWH (Average kwh cost for year)

POWER COSTS Poly. (POWER COSTS)



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
    WATER AUDIT DATA - 2015/16/17 POWER BILLINGS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JUNE 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  July 21, 2017

( City Account # 51-93-571; Amounts shown were paid the month following)

POWER BILLINGS
      DATE TOTAL TOTAL COST /

BILLING KWHs KWH
Jan-15 $22,413 331936 $0.068
Feb-15 $24,058 309870 $0.078
15-Mar $25,787 316736 $0.081
15-Apr $23,790 316300 $0.075

15-May $25,418 342440 $0.074
15-Jun $25,089 253906 $0.099
15-Jul $23,312 261868 $0.089 $169,867 2133056 $0.0796

15-Aug $22,202 271064 $0.082
15-Sep $21,874 260444 $0.084
15-Oct $20,737 250062 $0.083
15-Nov $18,598 216430 $0.086
15-Dec $18,994 212240 $0.089 $272,272 3343296 $0.0814 Ave. $ / KWH - 2015
16-Jan $18,611 235916 $0.079
16-Feb $16,356 210876 $0.078
16-Mar $17,776 211690 $0.084
16-Apr $14,522 188470 $0.077

16-May $17,374 198206 $0.088
16-Jun $19,562 190630 $0.103
16-Jul $18,100 201928 $0.090 $122,301 1437716 $0.0851

16-Aug $17,395 202146 $0.086 $139,696 1639862 $0.0852
16-Sep $16,304 199118 $0.082
16-Oct $14,243 191158 $0.075 $170,243 2030138 $0.0839
16-Nov $12,633 181758 $0.070 $182,877 2211896 $0.0827
16-Dec $16,260 191086 $0.085 $199,137 2402982 $0.0829 Ave. $ / KWH - 2016
17-Jan $14,391 203332 $0.071 $213,528 2606314 $0.0819
17-Feb $16,734 167478 $0.100 $230,262 2773792 $0.0830
17-Mar $14,771 178522 $0.083 $245,033 2952314 $0.0830
17-Apr $11,803 164098 $0.072 $256,836 3116412 $0.0824

17-May $10,325 160694 $0.064 $267,161 3277106 $0.0815
17-Jun $14,196 180486 $0.079 $281,357 3457592 $0.0814



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
WATER AUDIT DATA - 2015/16/17 POWER BILLINGS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JUNE 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  July 21, 2017

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

$18,000

$20,000

$22,000

$24,000

$26,000

$28,000

MONTHLY POWER BILLINGS - WATER #51-93-571



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
    WATER AUDIT DATA - CHEMICAL/MEMBRANE COSTS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

Chemical costs average $150 per 1 MG of finished water
Membrane Replacement cost is approximately $90 per 1 MG of Raw Water
(Based on 2014 replacement cost of $518,000 for 5,920 MG RW Pumped)
DATE RAW FINISHED CHEMICALMEMBR. TOTAL COST

WATER WATER COSTS COSTS COST       k $
YR-2012 61 51.5 7,725$    5,490$    13,215$  13.2$      
YR-2013 57.1 48.5 7,275$    5,139$    12,414$  12.4$      
YR-2014 67.6 53.9 8,085$    6,084$    14,169$  14.2$      

Jan-15 68.44 56.8 8,517$    6,160$    14,677$  14.7$      
Feb-15 63.13 50.9 7,628$    5,682$    13,309$  13.3$      
15-Mar 72.87 59.1 8,858$    6,558$    15,416$  15.4$      
15-Apr 66.66 55.1 8,259$    5,999$    14,258$  14.3$      

15-May 66.11 53.3 7,998$    5,950$    13,948$  13.9$      
15-Jun 62.19 49.5 7,428$    5,597$    13,025$  13.0$      
15-Jul 59.4 47.9 7,191$    5,346$    12,537$  12.5$      

15-Aug 58.93 48.4 7,254$    5,304$    12,558$  12.6$      
15-Sep 55.8 45.9 6,885$    5,022$    11,907$  11.9$      
15-Oct 56.1 45.6 6,840$    5,049$    11,889$  11.9$      
15-Nov 45.4 36.8 5,520$    4,086$    9,606$    9.6$        
15-Dec 43.2 34.7 5,205$    3,888$    9,093$    9.1$        
16-Jan 45.3 36.4 5,460$    4,077$    9,537$    9.5$        
16-Feb 41.1 33.1 4,965$    3,699$    8,664$    8.7$        
16-Mar 42.7 34.4 5,160$    3,843$    9,003$    9.0$        
16-Apr 43.2 33.3 4,988$    3,888$    8,876$    8.9$        

16-May 44.4 35.4 5,310$    3,996$    9,306$    9.3$        
16-Jun 44.3 35.1 5,265$    3,987$    9,252$    9.3$        
16-Jul 42.4 34.3 5,145$    3,816$    8,961$    9.0$        

16-Aug 40.5 33.9 5,085$    3,645$    8,730$    8.7$        
16-Sep 39.1 32.4 4,859$    3,519$    8,378$    8.4$        
16-Oct 41.6 32.2 4,830$    3,744$    8,574$    8.6$        
16-Nov 37.8 30.5 4,575$    3,402$    7,977$    8.0$        
16-Dec 42.4 33.8 5,070$    3,816$    8,886$    8.9$        
17-Jan 44 35.2 5,280$    3,960$    9,240$    9.2$        
17-Feb 37.3 30.2 4,530$    3,357$    7,887$    7.9$        
17-Mar 38.9 31.8 4,770$    3,501$    8,271$    8.3$        
17-Apr 36.7 30.2 4,530$    3,303$    7,833$    7.8$        

17-May 39.1 31.7 4,755$    3,519$    8,274$    8.3$        
17-Jun 38.8 32.8 4,920$    3,492$    8,412$    8.4$        
17-Jul 38.9 31.6 4,740$    3,501$    8,241$    8.2$        



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
    WATER AUDIT DATA - CHEMICAL/MEMBRANE COSTS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

 $7.0

 $8.0

 $9.0

 $10.0

 $11.0

 $12.0

 $13.0

 $14.0

 $15.0

 $16.0

 $17.0

CHEMICAL & MEMBRANE COSTS PER MONTH
(Based on $150/MG FW  for Chemicals & $90/MG RW for Membrane Repl.)

($ Amounts shown in thousands)

Chemical + Membrane Cost Poly. (Chemical + Membrane Cost)



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
    WATER AUDIT DATA - COMBINED PRODUCTION COSTS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

   DATE RAW FINISHED CHEMICALMEMBR. POWER At  $.081 / TOTAL
WATER WATER COSTS COSTS KWH/1000    KWH COST

YR-2010 57.6 48.3 7,245$    5,184$    288 23,328$  35,757$    
YR-2011 58.5 49.6 7,440$    5,265$    265 21,465$  34,170$    
YR-2012 61 51.5 7,725$    5,490$    288 23,328$  36,543$    
YR-2013 57.1 48.5 7,275$    5,139$    279 22,599$  35,013$    
YR-2014 67.6 53.9 8,085$    6,084$    309 25,029$  39,198$    

Jan-15 68.44 56.8 8,517$    6,160$    332 26,892$  41,569$    
Feb-15 63.13 50.9 7,628$    5,682$    310 25,110$  38,419$    
15-Mar 72.87 59.1 8,858$    6,558$    317 25,677$  41,093$    
15-Apr 66.66 55.1 8,259$    5,999$    316 25,596$  39,854$    

15-May 66.11 53.3 7,998$    5,950$    342 27,702$  41,650$    
15-Jun 62.19 49.5 7,428$    5,597$    254 20,574$  33,599$    
15-Jul 59.4 47.9 7,191$    5,346$    262 21,222$  33,759$    

15-Aug 58.93 48.4 7,254$    5,304$    271 21,951$  34,509$    
15-Sep 55.8 45.9 6,885$    5,022$    260 21,060$  32,967$    
15-Oct 56.1 45.6 6,840$    5,049$    250 20,250$  32,139$    
15-Nov 45.4 36.8 5,520$    4,086$    216 17,496$  27,102$    
15-Dec 43.2 34.7 5,205$    3,888$    212 17,172$  26,265$    
16-Jan 45.3 36.4 5,460$    4,077$    236 19,116$  28,653$    
16-Feb 41.1 33.1 4,965$    3,699$    211 17,091$  25,755$    
16-Mar 42.7 34.4 5,160$    3,843$    212 17,172$  26,175$    
16-Apr 43.2 33.3 4,995$    3,888$    188 15,228$  24,111$    

16-May 44.4 35.4 5,310$    3,996$    198 16,038$  25,344$    
16-Jun 44.3 35.1 5,265$    3,987$    190 15,390$  24,642$    
16-Jul 42.4 34.3 5,145$    3,816$    202 16,362$  25,323$    

16-Aug 40.5 33.9 5,085$    3,645$    202 16,362$  25,092$    
16-Sep 39.1 32.4 4,859$    3,519$    199 16,119$  24,497$    
16-Oct 41.6 32.2 4,830$    3,744$    191 15,471$  24,045$    
16-Nov 37.8 30.5 4,575$    3,402$    182 14,742$  22,719$    
16-Dec 42.4 33.8 5,070$    3,816$    191 15,471$  24,357$    
17-Jan 44 35.2 5,280$    3,960$    203 16,443$  25,683$    
17-Feb 37.3 30.2 4,530$    3,357$    167 13,527$  21,414$    
17-Mar 38.9 31.8 4,770$    3,501$    179 14,499$  22,770$    
17-Apr 36.2 30.2 4,530$    3,258$    164 13,284$  21,072$    

17-May 39.1 31.7 4,755$    3,519$    161 13,041$  21,315$    
17-Jun 38.8 32.8 4,920$    3,492$    180 14,580$  22,992$    
17-Jul 38.9 31.6 4,740$    3,501$    179 14,499$  22,740$    

2017 YTD 157,986$  $22,569
2016 300,713$  $25,059
2015 422,925$  $35,244



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
   WATER AUDIT DATA - SEGMENTAL PRODUCTION COSTS

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

 $-

 $5,000

 $10,000

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

 $35,000

 $40,000

 $45,000

SEGMENTAL MONTHLY WATER PRODUCTION COSTS
ELECTRICAL COSTS CHEMICAL COSTS MEMBRANE REPL COST

2015/16/17 MONTHLY

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

 $35,000

 $40,000

 $45,000

MONTHLY WATER PRODUCTION COSTS

MONTHLY WATER PRODUCTION COSTS

Poly. (MONTHLY WATER PRODUCTION COSTS)



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
         WATER AUDIT DATA - CHLORIDES PUMPED FROM RAW WATER

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

Well #1 Lbs of Well #3 Lbs of Well #4 Lbs of Well #5 Lbs of Total Lbs
   DATE PUMPED Chloride PUMPED Chloride PUMPED Chloride PUMPED Chloride Chloride

MG @ 800 ppm MG @ 670 ppm MG @ 660 ppm MG @ 770 ppm

Jan-15 0.0 0 29.4 5292 28.0 4963 11.1 2306 12561
Feb-15 0.0 0 23.2 4624 19.7 3873 20.3 4647 13143
Mar-15 0.0 0 21.4 3857 24.7 4382 26.8 5550 13789
Apr-15 0.0 0 17.0 3172 23.8 4369 25.8 5527 13068

May-15 0.0 0 21.8 3928 28.1 4984 16.3 3366 12278
Jun-15 10.0 2226 2.4 453 22.1 4046 27.7 5929 12654
Jul-15 15.3 3293 1.8 332 26.7 4739 15.6 3225 11589

Aug-15 19.1 4113 5.9 1054 27.6 4899 6.4 1322 11388
Sep-15 20.0 4448 0.0 0 30.6 5614 5.2 1113 11176
Oct-15 17.8 3831 1.7 306 25.3 4492 11.3 2341 10971
Nov-15 15.1 3358 5.7 1062 22.2 4073 2.4 514 9007
Dec-15 12.2 2626 4.7 847 23.5 4173 2.8 580 8226
16-Jan 15.3 3293 10.9 1965 13.7 2433 5.4 1119 8809
16-Feb 13.0 2991 6.3 1214 21.5 4081 0.3 66 8352
16-Mar 15.4 3314 7.8 1406 13.5 2397 6.0 1243 8360
16-Apr 12.6 2802 3.0 559 13.8 2532 13.8 2859 8752

16-May 12.6 2712 4.2 757 15.6 2770 11.9 2465 8704
16-Jun 9.7 2157 0.0 0 17.6 3229 17.0 3639 9026
16-Jul 22.6 4864 0.1 18 17.4 3090 2.3 476 8448

16-Aug 32.3 6952 1.1 198 6.6 1172 0.5 104 8426
16-Sep 28.8 6394 5.5 1015 4.5 833 0.1 24 8266
16-Oct 21.0 4520 0.0 0 20.3 3725 0.3 64 8309
16-Nov 11.0 2446 0.1 19 24.3 4459 2.4 514 7437
16-Dec 13.0 2798 0.1 18 6.8 1207 22.6 4682 8705
17-Jan 13.0 2791 0.0 0 11.4 2026 19.1 3955 8772
17-Feb 15.5 3693 0.1 20 0.4 79 21.3 4885 8677
17-Mar 14.6 3142 0.1 18 0.0 0 24.2 5013 8173
17-Apr 15.8 3401 0.3 54 0.0 0 20.5 4247 7701

17-May 11.5 2475 2.1 379 0.0 0 25.6 5303 8157
17-Jun 20.2 4348 4.0 721 0.0 0 14.6 3024 8093
17-Jul 13.6 2927 2.1 379 0.0 0 23.2 4806 8112



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
         WATER AUDIT DATA - CHLORIDES DISCHARGED FROM WWTP

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
DATA BASED ON ONCE/WEEK COMPOSITE SAMPLE, APPLIED TO EFFLUENT FLOWS

Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

CHLORIDES DISCHARGED, AVE. LBS / DAY
Discharge 1 2 3 4 5 Average LBS/DAY

Mar-15 18342 14758 21591 22843 19384 19384
Apr-15 16376 16113 15794 13311 18068 15932 15932

May-15 17226 14094 15917 15879 15779 15779
Jun-15 11885 17756 17339 20973 16988 16988
Jul-15 18485 12289 11991 14091 11650 13701 13701

Aug-15 11390 10598 16788 15444 13555 13555
Sep-15 10280 10226 9198 8306 9619 9526 9526
Oct-15 10823 12333 10158 14084 11850 11850
Nov-15 10225 13552 26671 17357 16951 16951
Dec-15 16550 17075 13469 14213 13359 14933 14933
16-Jan 18655 15525 11628 11519 14332 14332
16-Feb 14307 9660 7087 13728 11196 11196
16-Mar 8939 11412 17020 11353 11791 12103 12103
16-Apr 13917 11211 11597 12664 12347 12347

16-May 11530 14890 10675 10010 11776 11776
16-Jun 12583 9141 14530 11805 9603 11532 11532
16-Jul 16109 10003 9172 11761 11761

16-Aug   Plant partially shut down for repairs, no chloride data est @ 11700
16-Sep 10779 8669 8532 7602 8896 8896
16-Oct 12106 8500 8557 10435 9900 9900
16-Nov 8344 8632 8360 9695 7416 8489 8489
16-Dec 9055 12874 11569 13159 11664 11664
17-Jan 16813 11318 14398 15612 14535 14535
17-Feb 9950 10048 8762 9761 9630 9630
17-Mar 15222 8270 10462 8970 9761 10537 10537
17-Apr 12946 11754 10757 11819 11819

17-May 12232 11257 11573 8287 10837 10837
17-Jun 8841 9150 9107 9033 9033
17-Jul 8581 9618 7589 11442 9308 9308



      CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS
         RAW WATER CHLORIDES - WWTP DISCHARGED

   MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2017
Prepared by Dale R. Nobel, P.E. - City Engineer,  August 9,  2017

5000

7000

9000

11000

13000

15000

17000

19000

WWTP Chloride Discharge Daily Average in LBS
WWTP Chloride Discharge Daily Average in LBS

Poly. (WWTP Chloride Discharge Daily Average in LBS)

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

Ja
n

-1
5

Fe
b

-1
5

M
ar

-1
5

A
p

r-
1

5
M

ay
-1

5
Ju

n
-1

5
Ju

l-
1

5
A

u
g-

1
5

Se
p

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5
D

e
c-

1
5

Ja
n

-1
6

Fe
b

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

A
p

r-
1

6
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n
-1

6
Ju

l-
1

6
A

u
g-

1
6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6
D

e
c-

1
6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

A
p

r-
1

7
M

ay
-1

7
Ju

n
-1

7
Ju

l-
1

7

Ave. Lbs/Day Chlorides Extracted With Well 
Raw Water 























 

     Community Development Department 

     401 E Third St 

     Kewanee, IL. 61443 
         

Everything You Need! 
  Phone 309-852-2611, Ext. 222 

     Fax 309-856-6001 
 

 

July 31, 2017 
 
To:  Gary Bradley, City Manager 
From:  Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 
Subject:  July ESDA Report 
 
 
July 4:  Siren Tests. All tested OK. 
 
July 13:  Received Event Support call from the National Weather Service for the Prairie Chicken Festival.  
No severe weather expected. 
 
July 19:  Severe Weather Threat.  Spotter activation not required. 
 
This Hazardous Weather Outlook is for portions of north central 

Illinois...northwest Illinois...west central Illinois...east 

central Iowa...northeast Iowa...southeast Iowa and northeast 

Missouri. 

.DAY ONE...THIS AFTERNOON AND TONIGHT 

Hot and humid conditions are expected to continue with heat index 

readings as high as 100 to 105. Heat advisories and heat warnings 

are in effect for portions of the outlook area beginning this 

afternoon. 

Thunderstorms are forecast late this afternoon and overnight. Two 

rounds are forecast. One for later this afternoon into the evening 

and then again late tonight. Some of these storms could become 

severe with damaging winds and heavy rains being the main threat. 

There is also a low chance for tornadoes, however confidence is 

low that this will occur. 

An Excessive Heat Warning is in effect through Saturday for areas 

generally near and south of a line from Sigourney Iowa, to Wapello 

and Aledo Illinois. A Heat Advisory is in effect through Saturday 

generally for the counties along the Interstate 80 corridor. 

.SPOTTER INFORMATION STATEMENT... 

Spotter activation may be needed late this afternoon and overnight 

across east central Iowa and northwest Illinois. 
 
 
July 20:  Severe Weather Threat. 
 
This Hazardous Weather Outlook is for portions of north central 

Illinois...northwest Illinois...west central Illinois...east 

central Iowa...northeast Iowa...southeast Iowa and northeast 

Missouri. 

.DAY ONE...TODAY AND TONIGHT 

Thunderstorms with strong winds, small hail and torrential 

rainfall will impact portions of eastern Iowa and northwest 

Illinois early this morning. Heavy rain falling on areas already 

saturated from recent storms may lead to localized flash flooding. 



 

     Community Development Department 

     401 E Third St 

     Kewanee, IL. 61443 
         

Everything You Need! 
  Phone 309-852-2611, Ext. 222 

     Fax 309-856-6001 
 

 

Later today and tonight, scattered thunderstorms may redevelop 

across eastern Iowa and northwest Illinois. These storms will have 

the potential to produce damaging wind, large hail and torrential 

rainfall. 

Heat advisories and excessive heat warnings are in place for 

northeast Missouri, much of eastern Iowa and west central Illinois 

through Saturday. Please see the latest National Weather Service 

statements for details. 

.SPOTTER INFORMATION STATEMENT... 

Storm spotter activation may be needed this afternoon and evening 

across eastern Iowa and northwest Illinois. 
 
July 21:  Severe Weather Threat.  Spotters on standby. 
Conference call with the National Weather Service. 
 
This Hazardous Weather Outlook is for portions of north central 

Illinois...northwest Illinois...west central Illinois...east 

central Iowa...northeast Iowa...southeast Iowa and northeast 

Missouri. 

.DAY ONE...THIS AFTERNOON AND TONIGHT 

Thunderstorms are expected to redevelop this afternoon and spread 

east and south through the afternoon and evening. The environment 

is conducive for severe weather with damaging winds, tornadoes, 

flash flooding and large hail as the main threats. A few supercell 

thunderstorms are possible before a bow echo develops this 

evening. Some of these storms could be fast moving. Later tonight, 

storms are expected to be slow moving and could cause flash 

flooding. 

The Rock and Pecatonica rivers are experiencing flooding. Please 

see the latest Flood Statements and Flood Warnings for details. 

Hot and humid weather will continue today, with afternoon heat 

indices up to 110 degrees south of Highway 30. Excessive heat 

warnings and heat advisories are in effect for most of the outlook 

area. 

.SPOTTER INFORMATION STATEMENT... 

Spotter activation is likely this afternoon through the early 

morning hours. 

 

 



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   1

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 ADVANCED BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC                               11.31
    INV65135          01-11-551        SHIPPING CHGS-TONER                        11.31

 01 AEP ENERGY                                               23508.29
    D072117S&T        01-11-571        SOUTH & TENNEY TRAFFIC                     17.29
    D072217L-S&H      52-93-571        SOUTH & HOLLIS LIFT ST                     15.86
    D072217S-T&C      01-11-571        SIREN-TENNEY & COLLEGE                       .19
    D072217T&MC       01-11-571        TENNEY & MCCLURE TRAF                      20.34
    D072217W          51-93-571        WATER ELECTRIC                              9.88
    D072517C&M        01-11-571        CENTRAL & MAIN TRAFFIC                      7.61
    D072517F&M        01-11-571        FIRST & MAIN TRAFFIC                        8.20
    D072517P&M        01-11-571        PROSPECT & MAIN TRAF                       10.95
    D072517PND        01-21-539        ANIMAL POUND ELECTRIC                      45.61
    D072517S&M        01-11-571        SECOND & MAIN TRAFFIC                       7.78
    D072517WW5        51-93-571        WATER WELL 5 ELECTRIC                    7526.22
    D072617FSB        62-45-571        FIRE STORAGE ELECTRIC                        .49
    D072617L-F&U      52-93-571        FIRST & UNION LIFT ST                      19.38
    D072617L-H&T      52-93-571        HIGH & THIRD LIFT ST                        5.74
    D072617L-MP       52-93-571        MIDLAND PLAZA LIFT ST                      20.86
    D072617S-WC       01-11-571        SIREN-W CHURCH                               .19
    D072717CH         62-45-571        CITY HALL ELECTRIC                       2066.76
    D072717SWTP       51-93-571        SWTP ELECTRIC                            2347.84
    D072717T&M        01-11-571        THIRD & MAIN TRAFFIC                        7.17
    D072817CMW        58-36-571        CEM MAUSOLEUM ELECTRIC                       .88
    D072817L-F        52-93-571        FISHER PUMP STATION                        19.26
    D072817PSR        62-45-571        SHOOT RANGE ELECTRIC                         .18
    D072817PVC        58-36-571        PV CEMETERY ELECTRIC                       18.12
    D072817XFER       62-45-571        XFER ST ELECTRIC                          100.34
    D072917F2         62-45-571        FIRE ST 2 ELECTRIC                        115.21
    D072917L-CR       52-93-571        CAMB RD LIFT ST                             5.48
    D072917L-S        52-93-571        SIXTH ST LIFT ST                           71.18
    D072917L-TOC      52-93-571        TOC LIFT ST ELECTRIC                        3.49
    D072917NWTP       51-93-571        NWTP ELECTRIC                            3659.95
    D072917PWB        62-45-571        PW BLDG ELECTRIC                          133.75
    D072917S&M        01-11-571        SIXTH & MAIN TRAFFIC                       23.26
    D072917S-F&P      01-11-571        SIREN-FIFTH & PARK                           .13
    D072917WW3        51-93-571        WATER WELL 3 ELECTRIC                     359.36
    D072917WWTP       52-93-571        WWTP ELECTRIC                            6706.76
    D080117D          52-93-571        DISPOSAL ELECTRIC                          27.48
    D080117NE         01-11-571        N EAST ST SIGNALS                         125.10

 01 AIRGAS MID AMERICA                                         103.04
    9946700573        01-22-612        OXYGEN RENTAL                             103.04

 01 ASSOC OF PUBLIC TREASURERS US                              185.00
    105408            01-11-561        MEMBERSHIP DUES-DJ                        185.00

 01 AUCA CHICAGO MC LOCKBOX                                    154.32
    1591017510        62-45-471        UNIFORM RENTAL                             38.58
    1591026488        62-45-471        UNIFORM RENTAL                             38.58



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   2

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    1591035412        62-45-471        UNIFORM RENTAL                             38.58
    1591044426        62-45-471        UNIFORM RENTAL                             38.58

 01 AUTOMOTIVE ELECTRIC OF KEWANEE                              46.50
    66441             62-45-612        PAINT MACHINE BATTERY                      46.50

 01 AUTO ZONE                                                   37.58
    2644006319        62-45-830        ADAPTER                                    20.84
    2644015716        62-45-830        METRIC SPLINE SOCKETS                      16.74

 01 B & B PRINTING                                             639.20
    20430             01-65-595        DEMOLITION SIGNS                          178.00
    20431             51-42-651        METER CHANGE FORMS                         94.97
    20431             52-43-651        METER CHANGE FORMS                         94.97
    20432             02-61-658        SCRATCH PADS                              197.00
    20467             52-43-512.6      SHIP LAKE ST ALARM                         38.96
    20467             52-93-652        SHIP WWTP SAMPLES                          15.30
    20473             54-54-652        LAMINATE FR PK SIGNS                       20.00

 01 B & B LAWN EQUIPMENT & CYCLERY                             332.27
    174994            58-36-512        HEDGE TRIMMER ROPE                         31.50
    174995            58-36-512        BRUSHCUTTER REPAIR                        142.85
    176639            58-36-512        BUMP HEADS & FAN KIT                      157.92

 01 BARASH & EVERETT, LLC                                     7743.41
    D073117           21-11-533        JULY RETAINER                            6250.00
    D073117           21-11-533        REIMB EXPS & FEES                        1493.41

 01 BRADLEY, GARY                                              144.23
    17-17E            01-11-562        MTG/MILEAGE EXPS                          144.23

 01 BREEDLOVE'S SPORTING GOODS                                1592.60
    31272             01-22-471        (15) CLOTHING ALLOWANCES                 1453.60
    31491             01-21-473        20 WHITE TEES-POLICE                      139.00

 01 BRUBAKER, RICHARD                                          452.50
    D072717           01-41-617        SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT                      452.50

 01 CAMBRIDGE TELCOM SERVICES INC                              485.00
    D080817           01-11-537        FIBER INTERNET                            485.00

 01 CITY OF KEWANEE - HEALTH CARE                           103105.47
    HLTH-08/17        01-11-451        HEALTH INS/F&A                           1674.12
    HLTH-08/17        01-21-451        HEALTH INS/POLICE                       38249.64
    HLTH-08/17        01-22-451        HEALTH INS/FIRE                         29832.52
    HLTH-08/17        01-41-451        HEALTH INS/PW                            6707.55
    HLTH-08/17        01-52-451        HEALTH INS/PARKS                          457.54
    HLTH-08/17        01-65-451        HEALTH INS/CD                            1435.50
    HLTH-08/17        51-42-451        HEALTH INS/WATER                        10364.64
    HLTH-08/17        52-43-451        HEALTH INS/SEWER                         3199.31
    HLTH-08/17        57-44-451        HEALTH INS/SANIT                         7078.00
    HLTH-08/17        58-36-451        HEALTH INS/CEM                           2407.20
    HLTH-08/17        62-45-451        HEALTH INS/FLEET                         1699.45

 01 COLWELL, BRENT                                             300.00
    991328            01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00
    991329            01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00
    991331            01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      25.00



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   3

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    991332            01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00
    991333            01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00
    9I91330           01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      25.00
    9I91334           01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00

 01 IDOIT - COMMUNICATIONS REVOLVI                             477.02
    T1742545          01-21-552        LEADS LINE                                477.02

 01 COMCAST CABLE                                              407.95
    D071417D          38-71-549        INTERNET - DEPOT                          109.85
    D071517NWP        51-93-552        INTERNET VPN-NWTP                         213.20
    D072617PW         51-42-537        INTERNET - PW BLDG                         42.45
    D072617PW         62-45-537        INTERNET - PW BLDG                         42.45

 01 CRAWFORD, MURPHY & TILLY                                  2905.22
    114397            32-42-532        PROF SVS-WELL #4                         2905.22

 01 CULLIGAN OF KEWANEE                                        102.17
    D071617           52-93-652        WATER - WWTP                              102.17

 01 D&D OF KEWANEE INC                                         564.30
    88250             62-45-513        ELECTRICAL REPAIR K12                     564.30

 01 ROD DORMAN TRUCKING                                       1368.97
    432               52-93-586        LIME & HAULING CHGS                      1368.97

 01 EAGLE ENTERPRISES RECYCLING IN                            2419.50
    D072817           57-44-583        RECYCLING-JULY 2017                      2419.50

 01 EASTERN IOWA TIRE, INC                                     541.40
    100032996         62-45-613        2 RETREAD TIRES                           541.40

 01 FISHER SCIENTIFIC                                          574.41
    4228709           52-93-652        WWTP-LAB OPER SUPS                        332.65
    4303768           52-93-652        WWTP-LAB OPER SUPS                         96.09
    5141200           52-93-652        WWTP-LAB OPER SUPS                        145.67

 01 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPOR                            1348.68
    D071917           01-41-552        LOCAL PHONE/PW                            210.73
    D071917           54-54-552        LOCAL PHONE/FR PK                          34.43
    D071917           01-11-552        LOCAL PHONE/F&A                           300.85
    D071917           01-22-552        LOCAL PHONE/FIRE                          163.48
    D071917           52-93-552        LOCAL PHONE/WWTP                          110.43
    D071917           57-44-552        LOCAL PHONE/SANIT                          38.57
    D071917           51-93-552        LOCAL PHONE/WTP                            45.16
    D071917           01-21-552        LOCAL PHONE/POLICE                         58.54
    D071917           58-36-552        LOCAL PHONE/CEM                            53.72
    D071917PD         01-21-552        LOCAL PHONE/POLICE                        332.77

 01 FULTON, PENNY                                              179.25
    D071217           01-41-929        REFUND CULVERT/BAND                       179.25

 01 GALVA IRON & METAL CO INC                                  648.40
    33572             01-41-653        11GA TUBE RETURNED                          3.60-
    33633             52-93-512        DUMPSTER-STEP SCREEN                      652.00

 01 TRIZETTO PROVIDER SOLUTIONS                                 50.52
    1XQ2081700        01-22-579        ELECTRONIC CLAIMS FILED                    50.52

 01 GRAINGER                                                    58.55
    9498828731        01-52-652        60 GAL TRASH BAGS                          58.55



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   4

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 GUSTAFSON FORD                                             640.99
    153917            62-45-613        STROBE LT HARNESS                         532.48
    4371              62-45-613        OIL FILTER                                 22.96
    4386              62-45-613        WEATHERSTRIP                               85.55

 01 GUTSCHLAG, KENNY                                         20000.00
    0710201701        52-93-850        CONTROL CENTER-PUMPS                    20000.00

 01 HACH COMPANY                                              1420.68
    10555687          52-93-652        WWTP LAB OPER SUPS                        669.57
    10558815          51-93-652        WTP LAB OPER SUPS                         751.11

 01 HAYES, RAY JR                                              280.00
    5408              51-42-515        PUSH SPOILS-BULLDOZER                     140.00
    5408              52-43-515        PUSH SPOILS-BULLDOZER                     140.00

 01 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD                                  7609.85
    H396898           52-43-615        SEWER PARTS STOCK                        2240.55
    H400098           51-42-615        WATER PARTS-STOCK                        2894.30
    H459709           51-42-615        METERS W/RADIOS                           247.50
    H459709           52-43-615        METERS W/RADIOS                           247.50
    H459710           51-42-615        METERS W/RADIOS                           990.00
    H459710           52-43-615        METERS W/RADIOS                           990.00

 01 HENRY CO CLERK/RECORDER                                    108.00
    D080117           51-42-533        WATER LIENS RELEASED                       54.00
    D080117           01-65-549        MOWING LIENS RELEASED                      54.00

 01 HILLSIDE FLORIST                                            50.00
    012457            01-11-929        PLANT - B. TOSSELL                         50.00

 01 HODGE'S PHILLIPS 66 INC                                     36.83
    45910             62-45-513        DOT SAFETY TEST                            36.83

 01 HODELS INC                                                3920.20
    01-79926          52-93-586        CRAWLER RENTAL                           3920.20

 01 HUBER TECHNOLOGY, INC                                      270.00
    CD10015794        52-93-512        LIMIT SWITCHES                            270.00

 01 ILLINOIS LAW ENFORCEMENT ALARM                             120.00
    DUES6626          01-21-561        2017 ANNUAL DUES                          120.00

 01 ILL DEPARTMENT OF                                         6107.64
    2ND QTR 2017      22-14-453        2ND-2017 UNEMPL TAX                      6107.64

 01 INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEMS OF                              340.85
    10118822          62-45-613        1-K-12 BATTERIES                          223.90
    20118823          62-45-613        CAR BATTERY                               116.95

 01 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL                                      1791.38
    718952            01-52-512        BLADE, OIL & FILTER                       101.93
    723292            01-52-512        DRIVE SHAFT, SEAT KIT                    1486.69
    841981            01-52-512        SPINDLE                                   202.76

 01 KEISTER'S INC                                               13.50
    8029924           62-45-613        TIRE REPAIR                                13.50

 01 KEWANEE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE                                 80.00
    4072              01-65-518        DOWNTOWN CLEANUP                           80.00

 01 KEWANEE POOL & SPA                                          81.35



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   5

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    15459             32-42-850        WELL #4 CHLORINE                           56.80
    15469             32-42-850        WELL # 4 CHLORINE                          24.55

 01 KEWANEE VETERINARY CLINIC                                  356.00
    316384            01-21-539        CITY POUND FEES                           356.00

 01 KIWANIS CLUB OF KEWANEE                                    114.00
    11                01-11-561        QTRLY DUES-GB                              16.50
    11                01-11-562        QTRLY MEALS-GB                             97.50

 01 KNOX COUNTY LANDFILL                                     56914.56
    D073117           57-44-573        SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL                    56914.56

 01 KOMNICK, JACQUE                                            120.00
    D072817           54-54-652        REFUND FR PK RESRVTN                      120.00

 01 KUYKENDALL, WALTER R                                       134.49
    D072817           51-42-473        WK-CLOTH/BOOT ALLOW                       134.49

 01 LAVERDIERE CONSTRUCTION INC                               5485.00
    A9692             52-43-515        FILL ABANDONED SEWERS                    5485.00

 01 LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC                                       307.41
    9305109069        62-45-652        WIRING PARTS-STOCK                        175.97
    9305112583        51-42-655        SAFETY FUEL CAN                           131.44

 01 LEMANSKI, BARBARA K                                        122.60
    D072817           01-11-929        BL-CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                     122.60

 01 LMT INC                                                     77.20
    7973              52-93-512        BRASS LEVERS-VALVE                         77.20

 01 MARTIN EQUIPMENT OF ILLINOIS I                            1821.32
    286739            62-45-512        BACKHOE BOOM REPAIR                      1821.32

 01 MATCO TOOLS                                                 79.90
    131419            62-45-830        BUTANE SOLDER KIT                          79.90

 01 MCI MEGA PREFERRED                                         124.31
    D080117           01-21-552        LONG DISTANCE/PD-CD                        64.35
    D080117           01-11-552        LONG DISTANCE/F&A                          21.20
    D080117           01-41-552        LONG DISTANCE/PW                           30.58
    D080117           01-22-552        LONG DISTANCE/FIRE                          3.53
    D080117           54-54-552        LONG DISTANCE/FR PK                         1.23
    D080117           58-36-552        LONG DISTANCE/CEM                           3.42

 01 MENARD'S                                                  1004.71
    86756             01-52-652        55 GAL TRASH BAGS                          35.97
    86895             52-93-619        TOOLS & MISC ITEMS                        145.88
    87121             52-93-619        BOLTS, NUTS & WASHERS                      15.51
    87161             52-93-512        2 - 1/2 HP PUMPS                          298.99
    87185             52-93-619        PVC COUPLING                                2.28
    87248             52-93-619        CLEAR SILICONE                              5.00
    87334             52-93-619        BOLTS, CAULK & MISC                        80.01
    87439             01-41-652        EXP FOAM & STRAINER                        23.41
    87533             58-36-511        300 WATT LIGHT BULBS                        8.97
    87550             54-54-652        FRANCIS PARK FAN                           69.99
    87550             38-71-511        WALL ANCHORS & TAPCONS                     14.00
    87588             52-93-512        VALVE, CLAMP & ADPTR                       24.26
    87643             54-54-652        FR PK OPER SUPS                            12.58



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   6

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    87643             01-52-830        HEDGE SHEARS & LOPPER                      46.97
    87850             52-93-512        COUPLING & NIPPLES                         22.65
    87884A            52-93-512        BAR CLAMP                                   6.98
    87885             62-45-613        DIST WATER & LETTERS                       16.17
    87934             51-93-512        COUPLINGS & NIPPLES                        14.44
    87972             54-54-830        WET/DRY VACUUM                             49.88
    87972             01-52-652        DRYWALL BLADES                              2.27
    88107             58-36-511        PLUMBING SUPPLIES                          30.86
    88122             38-71-511        TRAIN DEPOT REPAIRS                        21.38
    88224             51-93-512        BRASS ELBOW                                 3.19
    88228             54-54-652        FR PARK SUPPLIES                           53.07

 01 MICA                                                       887.52
    D072717           14-11-591        LIAB CLAIM-JOHN GRICE                     887.52

 01 MICHLIG ENERGY LTD                                       10245.79
    07/17-DS          01-41-655        PW DIESEL                                1136.40
    07/17-DS          51-42-655        WATER DIESEL                              148.86
    07/17-DS          57-44-655        SANITATION DIESEL                        1063.42
    07/17-DS          01-22-655        FIRE DIESEL                               357.52
    07/17-GS          01-41-655        PW GASOLINE                               423.94
    07/17-GS          51-42-655        WATER GASOLINE                            583.67
    07/17-GS          52-43-655        SEWER GASOLINE                            356.67
    07/17-GS          52-93-655        WWTP GASOLINE                              47.88
    07/17-GS          01-22-655        FIRE GASOLINE                             105.65
    07/17-GS          01-21-655        POLICE GASOLINE                          2425.58
    07/17-GS          52-43-655        ENGINEERING GASOLINE                       60.47
    3656554           58-36-512        FUEL ISLAND PUMP                          436.37
    3656554           01-52-512        FUEL ISLAND PUMP                          436.37
    98956             58-36-655        CEMETERY GASOLINE                         447.63
    99178             58-36-655        CEMETERY GASOLINE                         446.98
    99180             52-93-655        WWTP DIESEL                               535.60
    99201             58-36-655        CEMETERY DIESEL                            85.29
    99447             58-36-655        CEMETERY GASOLINE                         393.31
    99465             01-52-655        FR PARK DIESEL                            192.37
    99556             58-36-655        CEMETERY DIESEL                           166.35
    99557             58-36-655        CEMETERY GASOLINE                         267.28
    99558             52-93-655        WWTP DIESEL                               128.18

 01 MIROCHA'S AUTO SERVICE INC                                  50.00
    13557             62-45-513        TOW SQUAD CAR                              50.00

 01 MISSISSIPPI VALLEY PUMP INC                               1700.00
    11691             52-43-512.6      REPL TRANSDUCER                          1700.00

 01 MUNICIPAL MARKING DISTRIBUTORS                             420.00
    21423             51-42-652        MARKING PAINT                             210.00
    21423             52-43-652        MARKING PAINT                             210.00

 01 MUTUAL WHEEL CO INC                                        544.25
    0314352           62-45-613        MIRROR, LIGHT BAR                         544.25

 01 NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS INC                                   133.64
    TI-0312115        01-00-159.7      DIGITAL PRINTS-KHS                        133.64



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   7

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 NORTHERN SAFETY CO INC                                     336.54
    902538146         01-41-473        SAFETY VESTS/SHIRTS                        61.14
    902538146         57-44-473        SAFETY VESTS/SHIRTS                       157.36
    902538146         51-42-473        SAFETY VESTS/SHIRTS                        60.86
    902540383         57-44-473        RAINCOATS/SUITS                            57.18

 01 WALLEN, PETE                                              1250.00
    D073117           38-71-549        JANITOR SERVICES                         1250.00

 01 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, IN                             276.09
    1143216542        62-45-612        PR WASHER HOSE REPAIR                      10.18
    1143217223        62-45-613        CV SHAFT                                  107.72
    1143217224        62-45-613        WASHER PUMP                                17.99
    1143217575        62-45-613        BLOWER MOTOR                               38.91
    1143217613        62-45-613        BLOWER PARTS                               18.13
    1143218648        62-45-830        WIRE BRUSH                                  2.99
    1143219185        62-45-613        BAND CLAMPS                                45.60
    1143219705        62-45-612        PAINT MACHINE OIL                           7.98
    1143219778        62-45-613        CORE CREDIT                                17.00-
    1143220932        62-45-613        LIGHT BULB                                  4.13
    1143221515        54-54-652        FR PARK SUPPLIES                           31.97
    1143221871        01-52-512        SILICONE                                    7.49

 01 OFFICE SPECIALISTS INC                                      25.75
    982022-0          01-11-651        THERMAL PAPER ROLLS                        25.75

 01 OFFICE MACHINE CONSULTANTS INC                             153.29
    IN120816          01-21-512        COPIER MONTHLY MAINT                       64.07
    IN120905          01-21-512        COPIER MONTHLY MAINT                       30.00
    IN121088          01-22-537        COPIER MONTHLY MAINT                       35.89
    IN121091          01-22-537        COPIER MONTHLY MAINT                       23.33

 01 OSF SAINT LUKE MEDICAL CENTER                             1616.31
    1001              51-42-455        DL-INJURY DRUG SCREEN                      78.00
    1001              01-22-455        JF-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        35.00
    1001              01-22-455        KB-PRE-EMPLOYMENT                         410.77
    1001              01-22-455        ZC-PRE-EMPLOYMENT                         410.77
    1001              01-22-455        RH-PRE-EMPLOYMENT                         410.77
    1001              57-44-455        JG-INJURY DRUG SCREEN                      78.00
    1001              01-22-455        SM-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        35.00
    1001              57-44-455        DH-INJURY DRUG SCREEN                      67.00
    1001              58-36-455        TW-ACCIDENT DRUG SCRN                      78.00
    1001              01-22-455        KB-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        35.00
    1001              57-44-455        JP-INJURY DRUG SCREEN                      78.00
    1001              58-36-455        GP-INJURY DRUG SCREEN                      78.00
    1001              01-22-455        PYMNT ON ACCT                             178.00-

 01 OSF SAINT LUKE MEDICAL CENTER                              274.00
    3001              01-22-455        GA-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        35.00
    3001              01-22-455        JL-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        67.00
    3001              01-22-455        AF-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        35.00
    3001              01-22-455        MM-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        67.00



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   8

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    3001              01-22-455        JF-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        35.00
    3001              01-22-455        JS-RANDOM DRUG SCRN                        35.00

 01 PDC LABORATORIES INC                                       877.80
    869579            51-93-542        WATER TESTING                              69.00
    869580            52-93-542        BORON TESTING                             171.80
    871140            51-93-542        WATER TESTING                             637.00

 01 PEST DOCTOR                                                 80.00
    24655             38-71-549        MUN BLDG PEST CONTROL                      60.00
    24656             01-22-580        FIRE ST 2 PEST CONTROL                     20.00

 01 PORTER, GERALD                                              69.78
    D080317           58-36-830        GP-BOOT REIMBURSEMNT                       69.78

 01 PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER INC                                   498.03
    5747987           01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                          498.03

 01 RAM SOFTWARE SYSTEMS INC                                  1800.00
    D071717           01-22-537        SOFTWARE SUPPORT                         1800.00

 01 S&S INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY                                       19.49
    4544175 RI        62-45-830        TRANS DRAIN FUNNEL                         19.49

 01 SECRETARY OF STATE                                          95.00
    D080817           52-43-830        SEWER TRUCK TITLE                          95.00

 01 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS                                          1043.46
    0212-2            01-41-614        STRIPING PAINT                            902.80
    0270-0            01-41-614        TIPS FOR PAINT SPRAYER                     89.97
    0299-9            01-41-614        TIP FOR PAINT SPRAYER                      29.99
    0498-7            01-41-614        NOZZLE SEAL KIT                            20.70

 01 SHOOK, KEVIN                                               216.49
    17-16E            01-22-562        CONF MEALS/MILEAGE                        216.49

 01 SMITH ECOLOGICAL SYSTEMS INC                               529.18
    20778             51-93-512        CHLORINE INJECTOR KIT                     529.18

 01 SUPREME RADIO COMMUNICATIONS I                             260.92
    163492            01-21-556        RADIO BATTERY                              65.92
    163763            62-45-513        RADIO REPAIR                              195.00

 01 T.D. KURTZ GLASS CO.                                       134.42
    1988              38-71-511        DEPOT TRIM PANELS                         134.42

 01 THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP                                 915.47
    3003358699        38-71-511        ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE                      915.47

 01 TRANE US INC                                              2921.00
    38222603          38-71-549        SERVICE ROOFTOP UNIT                      536.00
    38246874          38-71-549        SERV AGRMNT-CITY HALL                    2385.00

 01 TRIANGLE CONCRETE INC                                      843.75
    9048              52-43-615        COTTAGE ST-HY EARLY                       843.75

 01 ULINE                                                       89.99
    89041361          38-71-511        BOLLARDS-POLICE DEPT                       89.99

 01 U.S. CELLULAR                                              316.19
    202102324         01-41-552        CELLULAR SV/PW                            154.11
    202102324         01-11-552        CELLULAR SV/CM                             59.34
    202102324         58-36-552        CELLULAR SV/CEM                            51.37
    202102324         01-65-552        CELLULAR SV/CD                             51.37



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE   9

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 VERIZON WIRELESS                                           823.93
    9789209683        01-21-552        CELLULAR SV/POLICE                        785.92
    9789878987        58-36-552        CEM/INTERNET ACCESS                        38.01

 01 VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY                                   5917.42
    50018             51-93-656        CAUSTIC SODA/FLUORIDE                    5917.42

 01 STATE BANK OF TOULON - VISA                               2639.02
    D080117DJ         01-11-651        OFFICE SUPS                                40.40
    D080117DJ         01-22-562        CONF/LODGING-KS                          1146.75
    D080117DN         01-00-159.7      REIMBURSE CREDIT CARD                       5.89
    D080117GB         02-61-564        MEETING/MEAL EXPS                         146.07
    D080117GB         01-11-537        2 ADOBE SUBSCRIPTIONS                     106.22
    D080117GB         01-22-556        MOTOROLA RADIO SCRN                        19.99
    D080117GB         01-22-556        RADIO HOUSING COVER                        16.99
    D080117GB         02-61-564        MEETING/MEAL EXPS                          14.88
    D080117KE         01-65-840        IN-CAR SPEAKERPHONES                       79.98
    D080117KN         58-36-655        NON-ETHANOL GAS                            77.58
    D080117KN         58-36-652        2 STROKE ENGINE OIL                       152.01
    D080117KN         38-71-511        FURNACE FILTERS                            40.95
    D080117KN         01-52-512        POWER TOOL BATTERIES                       79.32
    D080117KS         01-22-562        CHECKED BAGGAGE                            25.00
    D080117RJ         01-41-612        HAMMER DRILL/DRIVER                       278.50
    D080117RJ         52-43-830        HAMMER DRILL/DRIVER                       278.50
    D080117WR         01-21-652        SECURITY CAMERA SYS                       129.99

 01 WALMART COMMUNITY                                          887.91
    000879            01-22-652        FIRE/OPER SUPS                             40.27
    000879            01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPS                               35.88
    001347A           01-11-929        COFFEE                                     31.92
    003067            01-21-651        POLICE/OFFICE SUPS                         36.56
    003209            38-71-611        JANITORIAL SUPS                            83.58
    003267            01-65-652        SURGE PROTECTOR                            22.97
    003420            01-21-651        POLICE/OFFICE SUPS                         13.88
    003503            01-65-652        USB ADAPTER                                34.97
    003542            01-21-652        POLICE/OPER SUPS                            3.84
    003622            01-21-652        POLICE/DVDS                                55.64
    004918            38-71-611        KLEENEX                                    12.54
    005085            01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPS                               71.76
    005085            01-22-654        FIRE/JANITORIAL SUPS                       22.94
    007900            01-65-652        PUSH PINS & WASTEBSKT                       5.16
    009833            01-21-159.7      2 LED TVS - POLICE DEPT                   416.00

 01 WC MEDIA                                                   165.00
    39312             01-00-159.7      BILLBOARD-HOG FESTIVAL                    165.00

 01 WEMPLES SALES & SERVICE                                     37.00
    78070             01-52-512        SHARPEN 4 CHAINS                           37.00

 01 WINFIELD SOLUTIONS, LLC                                    444.63
    000061783248      52-93-656        WEED KILLER                               444.63

   **  TOTAL CHECKS TO BE ISSUED                            299558.89



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 113
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE  10

     FUND                                                      AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

    GENERAL FUND                                            101336.65

    ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT                                       357.95

    INSURANCE FUND                                             887.52

    PUBLIC BENEFITS FUND                                      7743.41

    UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE                                    6107.64

    WATER IMPROVEMENT                                         2986.57

    CAPITAL MAINTENANCE/MUN. BLDG.                            5653.18

    WATER FUND                                               38258.13

    SEWER FUND                                               52566.07

    FRANCIS PARK                                               393.15

    SANITATION                                               67951.59

    CEMETERY FUND                                             5643.40

    CENTRAL MAINTENANCE                                       9673.63

      *** GRAND TOTAL ***                                   299558.89

          TOTAL FOR REGULAR CHECKS:                        299,558.89



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE  11

=======================================================================================
                                A/P MANUAL CHECK POSTING LIST
    POSTINGS FROM ALL CHECK REGISTRATION RUNS(NR) SINCE LAST CHECK VOUCHER RUN(NCR)
=======================================================================================
 PAYABLE TO                     CHECK DATE    CHECK NO         AMOUNT
   REG#  INV NO          G/L NUMBER      DESCRIPTION                              DISTR
=======================================================================================
 74 HEALTH CARE SERVICE CORPORATIO08/07/17    1151          104333.48
    275  D073117         74-14-451       HEALTH INS CLAIMS                     83600.86
    275  D073117         74-14-452       STOP LOSS SPECIFIC                    20732.62

 74 KEWANEE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE   07/24/17    1145              75.00
    274  D072417         74-14-451       I'M 4 FITNESS CERTS-3                    75.00

 74 MUTUAL OF OMAHA               08/07/17    1150             327.60
    275  000651241173    74-14-452       LIFE/AD&D INS-08/17                     327.60

 74 SISCO                         07/25/17    1146             887.90
    274  D072117         74-14-451       DENTAL/VISION CLAIMS                    887.90

 74 SISCO                         07/28/17    1147            1094.80
    274  D072817         74-14-451       DENTAL/VISION CLAIMS                   1094.80

 74 SISCO                         08/07/17    1148             462.42
    275  186190          74-14-451       D&V ADMIN FEES-08/17                    462.42

 74 SISCO                         08/07/17    1149            3226.38
    275  D080417         74-14-451       DENTAL/VISION CLAIMS                   3226.38

   **  TOTAL MANUAL CHECKS REGISTERED                       110407.58

=======================================================================================
   REPORT SUMMARY
=======================================================================================
   CASH             CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    01             299558.89                  .00           299558.89
    74                   .00            110407.58           110407.58
                  ------------         ------------        ------------
  TOTAL CASH       299558.89            110407.58           409966.47



 SYS DATE:08/10/17                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:19
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
 DATE: 08/10/17                  Thursday August 10,2017                       PAGE  12

=======================================================================================
                                A/P MANUAL CHECK POSTING LIST
    POSTINGS FROM ALL CHECK REGISTRATION RUNS(NR) SINCE LAST CHECK VOUCHER RUN(NCR)
=======================================================================================
 PAYABLE TO                     CHECK DATE    CHECK NO         AMOUNT
   REG#  INV NO          G/L NUMBER      DESCRIPTION                              DISTR
=======================================================================================
=======================================================================================
   DISTR            CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    01             101336.65                  .00           101336.65
    02                357.95                  .00              357.95
    14                887.52                  .00              887.52
    21               7743.41                  .00             7743.41
    22               6107.64                  .00             6107.64
    32               2986.57                  .00             2986.57
    38               5653.18                  .00             5653.18
    51              38258.13                  .00            38258.13
    52              52566.07                  .00            52566.07
    54                393.15                  .00              393.15
    57              67951.59                  .00            67951.59
    58               5643.40                  .00             5643.40
    62               9673.63                  .00             9673.63
    74                   .00            110407.58           110407.58
                  ------------         ------------        ------------
  TOTAL DISTR      299558.89            110407.58           409966.47



 
Henry-Stark Relay for Life Days 

WHEREAS, For approximately 35 years there has been a Relay for Life 
Event in Kewanee with Windmont Park being the host site and 

WHEREAS, more than five hundred people will gather to celebrate, 
remember, and promote cancer awareness and fight back against cancer and 

WHEREAS, the American Cancer Society’s efforts continue to help bring 
awareness through advocacy, education and information for men, women and 
children and   

WHEREAS, we are proud of their accomplishments and leadership and their 
mission to save lives thus celebrating more birthdays and 

WHEREAS, on Tuesday, August 15th the Relay for Life Teams will begin 
painting the town purple and 

WHEREAS, all citizens of Kewanee are encouraged to join the fight against 
cancer by supporting the Henry-Stark Relay for Life activities August 21st   
through August 26th 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Steve Looney, 
Mayor for the City of Kewanee, do hereby proclaim, August 21st -26th as 
 

“RELAY FOR LIFE DAYS” 
 

 
________________________________ 

Steve Looney, Mayor of the City of Kewanee 
August 14 2017 

 



  Item B 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 14, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5065 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution approving the use of 
incentives under the small business interest payment 
program by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$20,000 

Budget Line Item: 02-61-930.2 

Balance Available $40,000 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes the use of the small business interest 
payment program by MTM 

BACKGROUND The City provided a low interest loan to MTM in July 
2016 from the Revolving Loan Program.  In the 
application for the loan, MTM provided some rather 
large numbers regarding potential employment and 
sales.  Since that time, the company has restructured 
its ownership, narrowed its product line, reduced its 
overhead, and borrowed additional funds to inject 
capital into its operations.   

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 



  Item B 

ANALYSIS The loan was taken out last fall with the idea that they 
would be able to qualify for this program.  However, 
the program was created but not funded until the 
current budget was approved in May.  The bank 
which made the loan provided two letters, one asking 
for the City to consider this program for 2 years, and 
a subsequent version as the behest of MTM 
requesting that the City commit to a 10-year term.  
MTM also provided information from a call for 
financing that the company generated that has 
projections regarding production with an infusion of 
capital.  That document contains proprietary 
information and is available for your review at City 
Hall. 
Making this small commitment helps to ensure the 
viability of the previous loan and provides a small 
boost to a small company that is struggling in its early 
stages but appears to have established itself.  I would 
love to see the company grow as projected in the call 
for financing, but the projected use of some of the 
capital, along with the projected profit levels and exit 
strategy, make me hesitant at this time to commit to 
anything beyond one or two years of assistance.   
The use of loan proceeds and creation of jobs in the 
past two years both meet the criteria established 
within the program.     

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Loan Application, bank letter 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5065 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE USE OF INCENTIVES UNDER THE SMALL 
BUSINESS INTEREST PAYMENT PROGRAM BY MIDWEST TRAILER 
MANUFACTURING AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL 
FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council approved Community and Economic Development 
Incentives for use in the City of Kewanee in September 2016; and,  

WHEREAS, Those incentives included the Small Business Interest Payment Program 
intended to assist existing legal businesses within the City of Kewanee 
with obtaining financing for certain eligible costs, including operating 
capital; and, 

WHEREAS, Midwest Trailer Manufacturing expressed interest in the program in 
October 2016, at which time the program had not been funded; and, 

WHEREAS,  Midwest Trailer Manufacturing received a low interest loan from the City 
of Kewanee in July 2016 through the City’s Revolving Loan Program; 
and, 

WHEREAS, The City Council finds it in the best interest of the community to continue 
to support Midwest Trailer Manufacturing in its early stages to ensure the 
viability of the previous loan and to give a small boost to the company in 
its work to create and retain jobs in the community. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
KEWANEE IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1 The City Council of the City of Kewanee accepts the recommendation of 
staff to authorize the use of the Small Business Interest Payment 
Program by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing in conjunction with a loan 
from State Bank of Toulon disbursed October 28, 2016 and maturing on 
October 28, 2017. 

Section 2 The City Council finds it is in the best interests of the City of Kewanee 
and would promote industrial development; protect current levels of 
employment, and create new job opportunities in the City of Kewanee.  
Therefore, the City Council authorizes the use of the Small Business 
Interest Payment Program by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing for a loan 
not to exceed $500,000 with a one year maturity, such maturity date 
occurring on or before December 31, 2018. 

 



Section 3 The Mayor, City Attorney, City Manager, and City Clerk are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute any and all documents necessary to 
bind the City and to make said authorization to Midwest Trailer 
Manufacturing, as approved by the City Attorney.  

Section 4 Said authorization, is expressly conditioned upon Midwest Trailer 
Manufacturing complying with: 

A. All terms and conditions of said Small Business Interest Payment 
program and said Midwest Trailer Manufacturing providing the City 
with adequate written documentation of compliance with said terms 
and conditions, including, but not limited to, the specific retention 
and creation of FTE 18 jobs, and sales of no less than $2 million per 
year. 

B. Loan funds received shall be used exclusively for the purposes stated 
in the application filed by Midwest Trailer Manufacturing and as 
approved by this resolution. 

 
Section 5 This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

passage and approval as provided by law. 
 
 
Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 14th day of August, 2017. 
 
    
ATTEST:   Steve Looney, Mayor 
    
    
  Melinda K. Edwards, City Clerk  
    

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Andrew Koehler     
Council Member Deann Schweitzer     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Mike Yaklich     

 













Loan Programs   
 

12 | P a g e  
 

KEWANEE	SMALL	BUSINESS	INTEREST	PAYMENT	PROGRAM

PURPOSE 
The program is designed to stimulate economic 
growth and create jobs that will improve the 
living conditions of residents in the 
community. The program provides financial 
assistance to eligible businesses and 
development projects while mitigating the 
amount of risk taken on by the City.   
 
Businesses receiving funds through the 
program will be required to obtain 
conventional financing and  create or retain a 
sufficient number of jobs to merit public 
investment.   
 
AUTHORIZATION 
The City of Kewanee is the administrator of 
this program and where applicable will 
facilitate implementation of the program 
through identification of companies that might 
benefit from the program.  Budgetary and 
participant approval for the program rests with  
the authority of the City Council, while 
authorization for program implementation is 
the responsibility of the City Manager and 
assigned staff 
 
ELIGIBLE AREAS 
Financing under this program is available to all 
eligible businesses located within the city 
limits of the City of Kewanee.  
 
ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
Applicants for the program must be existing 
legal businesses, located within the City of 
Kewanee, with a proper local business license 
(if applicable), insurance, and required permits 
per local, state and federal requirements, or 
corporations in good standing looking to locate 
or relocate in Kewanee. If an applicant is a new 
start-up business and does not have proper 
licenses or insurance, then these items can be 
made a condition of approval. The business can 
be a tenant leasing space or an owner of 

property where the business is located. The 
existing business must create or retain three (3) 
or more permanent full time equivalent (FTE) 
jobs.   
 
HOW THE PROGRAM WORKS 
Approved applicants obtain a loan through a 
commercial lender of their choice.  Upon 
review and approval of semi-annual reports 
submitted by the applicant to the City, provided 
that agreed upon benchmarks have been 
achieved by the applicant, the City provides 
reimbursement to the applicant for interest 
expenses incurred as a result of the loan.  
 
PROGRAM BENEFITS/ELIGIBLE USES 
Funds under this program are restricted to 
interest payments on certain eligible costs. 
Some common eligible costs are: 

 Operating capital (including license and 
permit fees if applicable) 

 Renovation of leased space or owned 
buildings (including engineering, 
architectural, and local permits or fees), 
new construction, or acquisition of 
existing commercial or industrial space. 

 Purchase of manufacturing equipment 
(with or without installation costs) 

 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 
(FF&E) 

 
 
The lending institution shall disburse funds and 
calculate interest thereon incrementally on a 
reimbursement basis, or through direct 
payment of vendor/contractor invoices, as 
eligible costs are verified.  The City of 
Kewanee and program participants shall 
negotiate benchmarks and goals for 
employment, sales, and other measurables to 
ensure that the City’s investment of funds is 
merited.   
 
 



Loan Programs   
 

13 | P a g e  
 

FUNDING LIMITS 
Program funding and availability is at the 
discretion of the City Council.  Funding is 
limited to $2,000 per year for each job created 
within any two consecutive reporting periods, 
with a maximum funding amount of $40,000 
per year per participant. 
 
CONTACT 
City of Kewanee 
Gary Bradley, City Manager 
401 E. Third Street 
Kewanee, IL 61443 
Phone: (309)853-4200 
Fax: (309)856-6001 
Email: gbradley@Cityofkewanee.net 
Website:  www.Cityofkewanee.com 
 
Kewanee Economic Development 
Corporation 
Kathy Albert, Executive Director 
404 E. Third Street 
Kewanee, IL 61443 
Phone:  (309) 853-5000 
Fax: (309) 853-1417 
Email: kalbert@kedcorp.org 
Website:  www. kedcorp.org 
 
Kewanee Chamber of Commerce 
Mark Mikenas, Executive Vice President 
113 E. 2nd St. 
Kewanee, IL 61443 
Phone:  (309) 852-2175 
Email: chamber@kewanee.com 
Website:  www. Kewanee-il.com 



  Item C 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 14, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5066 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution authorizing honorary 
naming of the 600-1100 blocks of Madison Avenue 
“PFC Walter George Richards Way” 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$250.00 

Budget Line Item: 01-41-614 

Balance Available 23,000 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes the honorary naming of the 600-1100 
blocks of Madison Avenue as “PFC Walter George 
Richards Way” 

BACKGROUND In April 2009, the City Council adopted Section 
97.013 authorizing the Honorary Street Name Sign 
program.  This program allows citizens an opportunity 
to honor a Kewanee resident who lost their life while 
serving our country in the military. 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 



  Item C 

ANALYSIS The City received an application from Bette Dennison 
for the proposed street sign on June 23, 2017.  
During a review of the application and discussion with 
the Honorary Street Sign Advisory Committee, it was 
discovered that this request was made previously, 
but had not come to completion, even though the 
Advisory Committee had recommended placement of 
the sign. 
PFC Richards was a Kewanee resident at the time of 
his death.  He served in the Marine Corp in Okinawa.  
He sustained a gunshot wound to the abdomen and 
was hospitalized.  The infection from the wound 
combined with the onset of pneumonia took his life 
less than a month later. 
The application was received from Bette Dennison, 
niece of PFC Richards.  She is 1 of 9 nieces and 
nephews that are current residents of Kewanee.  She 
has requested that the block of Madison Avenue 
bounded by 6th and 11th Streets be honorary named 
for PFC Richards.  PFC Richards’ parents lived at 
1102 Madison Avenue at the time of his death.  Ms. 
Dennison has further requested that the unveiling of 
the signs take place on a Friday in September if 
possible. 
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

A press release will be issued after approval, if 
applicable 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

Advisory Committee recommended placement 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends Approval 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Application for Honorary Street Name Sign 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5066 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING HONORARY NAMING OF A SECTION OF CITY STREET IN 
MEMORY OF PFC WALTER GEORGE RICHARDS, AND DECLARING THAT THIS 

RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS, On June 25, 1945, Kewanee resident PFC Walter George Richards gave his life in service 

to the citizens of the United States of America while serving in the U. S. Marine Corp in 
Okinawa; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City has received an application from Bette Dennison, niece of PFC Richards, to 

have installed an honorary street name sign in the 600 - 1100 block of Madison Avenue 
in honor of PFC Richards; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Honorary Street Name Sign Advisory Committee has reviewed this honorary street 

name sign application from Mrs. Dennison and unanimously found it to be in full 
compliance with the provisions of City Code section 97.013; and 

 
WHEREAS,  The Kewanee City Council encourages all citizens to embrace and fully support the life, 

service, and full measure of devotion given by PFC Walter George Richards, and the 
millions of other brave men and women, that have forgone their personal convenience to 
serve their Country and to protect the greater good of the people of the United States of 
America. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE KEWANEE CITY COUNCIL, IN COUNCIL 
ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1 The City Council hereby finds that the application for an honorary street name sign for 
PFC Walter George Richards, is in full compliance with City Code section 97.013, and 
hereby designates the honorary name of the 600 - 1100 block of Madison Avenue as 
“PFC Walter George Richards Way”.   

Section 2 City staff is hereby authorized to purchase any necessary signs and appurtenant 
equipment to allow proper signage to designate the 600 – 1100 block of Madison Avenue 
as “PFC Walter George Richards Way”. 

Section 3 City staff is directed to inform the public and the press about the time, date, and location 
of the naming ceremony, when the details are finalized.   

Section 4 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 
approval as provided by law.   

 
Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 14th day of August 2017 
 

ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

  

 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     
Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Mike Yaklich     





















  Item E 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 14, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance # 3896 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of an Ordinance to vacate a portion of 
an alley located on the east side of 930 and 918 
Harbour Street 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Vacates an unimproved alley, relieving the City of the 
obligation to maintain said alley. 

BACKGROUND Previous efforts vacating alley and street properties 
in the area have left the portion of alley abutting 930 
Harbour Street landlocked and inaccessible to City 
crews.  The City has no infrastructure in the property 
and could not place infrastructure in the alley 
because it is not contiguous with other public 
property.  Additional alley property further to the 
south abutting 918 Harbour, likewise, is of little value 
to the City.   

SPECIAL NOTES N/A    

ANALYSIS Staff has reviewed the area and determined there are 
no public utilities in the alley.  The alley is an 
unimproved grass alley, with no use to the City.   



  Item E 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

N/A    

 



ORDINANCE NO. 3896 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PORTION OF AN ALLEY LOCATED ON THE EAST 
SIDE OF 918 AND 930 HARBOUR STREET, AND DECLARING THAT THIS ORDINANCE 

SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AS PROVIDED HEREIN 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has received a petition from the abutting property owner, 

Bradley Osborne, 924 Harbour Street, to vacate a sixty feet long part of a sixteen 
feet wide public alley adjacent to the east side of Lots 151 and 152 inclusive of 
the Pleasant View Addition Extension, commonly known as 918 Harbour Street; 
and, 

WHEREAS, The City Council has previously vacated a portion of Bunn Avenue, and 150 feet 
of the alley adjacent to 924 Harbour Street leaving a sixty seven feet long part of 
the a sixteen feet wide public alley adjacent to the east side of Lots 158 and 159 
inclusive of the Pleasant View Addition Extension, commonly known as 930 
Harbour Street, landlocked; and, 

WHEREAS, The entire public alley was platted and dedicated to the public as a part of the 
Pleasant View Addition Extension; and, 

WHEREAS, The alley is unimproved with no public use and no utilities of the City or its 
franchisees; and,  

WHEREAS, The City Council has determined that there is no further public use for sixty feet 
long part of a sixteen feet wide public alley adjacent to the east side of Lots 151 
and 152 inclusive of the Pleasant View Addition Extension, commonly known as 
918 Harbour Street, nor the sixty seven feet long part of the sixteen feet wide 
public alley adjacent to the east side of Lots 158 and 159 inclusive of the Pleasant 
View Addition Extension, commonly known as 930 Harbour Street; and, 

WHEREAS, The City Council has determined that said sixty feet long part of a sixteen feet 
wide public alley adjacent to the east side of Lots 151 and 152 inclusive of the 
Pleasant View Addition Extension, commonly known as 918 Harbour Street to be 
vacated shall be conveyed in its entirety to Bradley Osborne; and, 

WHEREAS,  The City Council has determined that said sixty seven feet long part of the sixteen 
feet wide public alley adjacent to the east side of Lots 158 and 159 inclusive of 
the Pleasant Valley Addition Extension, commonly known as 930 Harbour Street 
to be vacated shall be conveyed in its entirety to Troy Dennison; and, 

WHEREAS, The City Council has determined that the value of the land and the cost to the City 
to have City staff and the City Attorney prepare and file the appropriate 
documents in Henry County to convey title of the proposed vacated portion of 
public alley to Bradley Osborne and Troy Dennison is $200. 

 
THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE, 
ILLINOIS, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS. 
 



Page 2 of 3 
Ordinance No. 3896 
Vacating Part of alley in PV Add. Ext. 

SECTION ONE: The City Council finds that public interest is best served by relief to the 
public from further burden and responsibility of maintaining the portion 
of the sixty feet long part of a sixteen feet wide public alley adjacent to 
the east side of Lots 151 and 152 inclusive of the Pleasant View 
Addition Extension, commonly known as 918 Harbour Street and the 
sixty seven feet long part of a sixteen feet wide public alley adjacent to 
the east side of Lots 158 and 159 inclusive of the Pleasant View 
Addition Extension, commonly known as 930 Harbour Street, described 
in Section Two hereof, by vacating said portion of public alley. 

 
SECTION TWO:         That the sixty feet long part of a sixteen feet wide public alley adjacent 

to the east side of Lots 151 and 152 inclusive of the Pleasant View 
Addition Extension, commonly known as 918 Harbour Street, and the 
sixty seven feet long part of a sixteen feet wide public alley adjacent to 
the east side of Lots 158 and 159 inclusive of the Pleasant View 
Addition Extension, commonly known as 930 Harbour Street, is hereby 
vacated.  That portion of public alley being more particularly described 
as bounded by the following description:   
Beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot One Hundred Fifty-One (151) of 
Pleasant View Addition Extension, City of Kewanee, Henry County, Illinois; 
thence North along the West line of a sixteen (16) feet wide alley a distance of 
Sixty (60) feet to the Northeast corner of Lot One Hundred Fifty-Two (152) of 
said Pleasant View Addition Extension; thence East Sixteen (16) feet to a 
point, said point being on the East line of said Sixteen (16) feet wide alley, and 
said point also being on the East line of Pleasant View Addition Extension to a 
point; thence South a distance of Sixty (60) feet along the East line of Pleasant 
View Addition Extension to a point; thence West a distance of Sixteen (16) 
feet to the point of beginning.  Said vacated section of public alley containing 
960 square feet, more or less; and beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 
One Hundred Fifty-Eight (158) of Pleasant View Addition Extension, City of 
Kewanee, Henry County, Illinois; thence North along the West line of a sixteen 
(16) feet wide alley a distance of Sixty-seven (67) feet to the Northeast corner 
of Lot One Hundred Fifty-nine (159) of said Pleasant View Addition Extension; 
thence East sixteen (16) feet to a point, said point being on the East line of 
Pleasant View Addition Extension to a point; thence South a distance of Sixty-
seven (67) feet along the East line of Pleasant View Addition Extension to a 
point; thence West a distance of sixteen (16) feet to the point of beginning.  
Said vacated section of public alley containing One thousand seventy-two 
(1,072)  square feet, more or less. 

 
SECTION THREE: The City Council finds that value of the land being vacated and the 

administrative cost to the City of Kewanee to lawfully put into effect 
said vacation is $200.00. 

 
SECTION FOUR: The City Council hereby directs that title to the vacated portion of public 

alley described in Section Two hereof, shall be, upon payment of 



Page 3 of 3 
Ordinance No. 3896 
Vacating Part of alley in PV Add. Ext. 

$100.00 dollars to the City of Kewanee, conveyed to Bradley Osborne, 
924 Harbour Street, Kewanee, owner of abutting parcels with permanent 
index numbers 20-27-407-005, and upon payment of $100.00 to the City 
of Kewanee, conveyed to Troy and Natasha Dennison, 930 Harbour 
Street, Kewanee, owner of abutting parcels with permanent index 
numbers 20-27-407-001, all in compliance with 65 ILCS 5/11-91-1. 

 
SECTION FIVE:      This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

passage and approval as provided by law. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois, this 14th day of August 2017. 
 
 
APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor of the City of Kewanee, Illinois, August 14, 2017. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

 
RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Steve Looney     
Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     
 



8/7/2017 Henry County, IL

https://henryil.mygisonline.com/ 1/1

Help

+

-

10m

40ft

724 Harbou



View…   Log Out



  Item F 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 14, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance #3897 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of an Ordinance amending Section 
115.117(B)(2) of the City Code as it pertains to the 
height of screening around beer garden/outdoor 
eating areas. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Establishes minimum fence height for screening at a 
beer garden / outdoor eating area.   

BACKGROUND Requested by the City Council at the July 24th 
Council Meeting 

SPECIAL NOTES There may be additional changes needed in this 
section of the Code.  As I have been out on vacation, 
this amendment is recommended at this time, with a 
full review of the code planned for the near future. 

ANALYSIS Six feet in height has been established for fencing 
around the most recently approved beer gardens, 
and recommended by the Plan Commission. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 3897 
 

AN ORDINANCE  AMENDING CHAPTER 155.117(B)(2) OF THE CITY CODE WHICH 
ESTABLISHES STANDARDS FOR SCREENING AROUND A BEER GARDEN/OUTDOOR 
EATING AREA, AND DECLARING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE 
UPON PUBLICATION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Kewanee has previously established standards for screening around beer gardens / 

outdoor eating areas; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has found that the current ordinance fails to determine the minimum 
height for screening around a beer garden / outdoor eating area; and,  

WHEREAS, The City Council has stated their desire for the minimum height for screening around a 
beer garden / outdoor eating area to be established at six (6) feet. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE, 
ILLINOIS, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 The City Council hereby amends Chapter 155.117(B)(2) of the City Code by inserting text 

shown as underline and omitting the text shown as strike through as follows: 
 

(2) Screening.  The licensee shall provide a wall or fence of with minimum height of 
six feet or greater as recommended by the Plan Commission and approved by the 
City Council adequate height to screen the patrons on the premises from the view 
of the surrounding property.  Such fence or wall shall be of a design and structure 
as recommended by the Plan Commission and approved by the City Council.  The 
perimeter of the fence or wall shall be landscaped by the licensee with suitable 
plants and shrubbery to preserve, as far as possible, harmony with the appearance 
of the surrounding property.  Said landscaping to be as recommended by the Plan 
Commission and approved by the City Council. 

    
Section 2 This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage, approval 

and publication as provided by law. 
 
 

Passed by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 14th day of August, 2017. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda K. Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

 
RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Steve Looney     
Council Member Andy Koehler     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     
Council Member Steve Faber      

Council Member Michael Yaklich     
 



  Item G 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 14, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5067 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a resolution awarding contract for 
demolition of 4 fast-track properties to Dana 
Construction. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$17500.00 

Budget Line Item: 01-65-595 

Balance Available $68222.50 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To award demolition contract to Dana Construction 
for buildings located at 511 W 5th St (house), 522 E 
7th St (house), 315 Elliott St (garage), 521 Cambridge 
Rd (garage).   



  Item G 

BACKGROUND Inspections of the property and buildings located at 
511 W 5th St (house), 522 E 7th St (house), 315 Elliott 
St (garage), 521 Cambridge Rd (garage).  .  have 
provided enough evidence to execute the Fast-Track 
(NON-JUDICIAL) Demolition pursuant to 65 ILCS 
5/11-31-1(e).  As result of this Non-Judicial 
Demolition Process, the Director of Community 
Development has acquired the right to demolish the 
all buildings located at 511 W 5th St, 522 E 7th St, 315 
Elliott St, and 521 Cambridge Rd.  .  A Request For 
Proposal was drafted and published with a bid due 
date of August 8, 2017. Bidders were requested to 
present their bids on each property individually and 
also one bid for five properties bundled together as 
one all inclusive bid for consideration. 

SPECIAL NOTES The original RFP included one other property at 802 
Rose St for the garage.  After publishing of the RFP, 
the owners of the property at 802 Rose St have 
decided to demolish the garage on their own.  With 
this in consideration and the strict time line for the 
Fast-Track demolition process, The bundled bids that 
were submitted have been eliminated and staff has 
recommended accepting the individual bids for the 
other four properties.   

ANALYSIS Four firms presented bids with all four firms 
submitting bundled bids as requested.  The bids were 
received and opened by the City Clerk on August 8, 
2017. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

All legal processes required pursuant to 65 ILCS 
5/11-31-1(e) to obtain the right for demolition were 
followed.   
Notice for the Request For Proposal was published in 
the Star Courier. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends granting the contract for these 
demolitions to Dana Construction Inc. 



  Item G 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Scope of work for 511 W 5th St (house), 522 E 7th St 
(house), 315 Elliott St (garage), 521 Cambridge Rd 
(garage).   
Copies of submitted bids. 
Bid Cost Analysis spreadsheet.  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5067 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AWARD DEMOLITION WORK AT 511 W FIFTH ST. (HOUSE), 522 
E SEVENTH ST. (HOUSE), 315 ELLIOTT ST. (GARAGE), AND 521 CAMBRIDGE RD 
(GARAGE). TO DANA CONSTRUCTION, AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION 
SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Kewanee acquired the right to demolish the buildings located at 511 

W 5th St (house), 522 E 7th St (house), 315 Elliott St (garage), 521 Cambridge Rd 
(garage).   pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-31-1(e) Fast-Track (NON-JUDICIAL) 
Demolition; and, 

WHEREAS,  The Kewanee City Council finds it in the best interest of  the City to remove the 
dilapidated buildings located on the land at 511 W 5th St (house), 522 E 7th St 
(house), 315 Elliott St (garage), 521 Cambridge Rd (garage).  ; and, 

WHEREAS,  City of Kewanee staff advertised for, and solicited, sealed lump sum bids for 
demolition of the buildings, and related work at 511 W 5th St (house), 522 E 7th St 
(house), 315 Elliott St (garage), 521 Cambridge Rd (garage) in Kewanee; and, 

WHEREAS, City of Kewanee staff requested that bidders present their bids on each property 
individually and also one bid of all properties bundled together as one all 
inclusive bid for consideration; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Four firms submitted bids, and they were opened by the City Clerk at 1:30 p.m., 

on August 8, 2017; and, 
WHEREAS, The bids received were: 
 

  
 
WHEREAS, City staff has recommended that the demolition work at 511 W 5th St (house), 522 

E 7th St (house), 315 Elliott St (garage), 521 Cambridge Rd (garage) be awarded 
to Dana Construction. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE 
THAT: 
Section 1 The bundled bid of Dana Construction of Kewanee as shown above, is hereby 

accepted, and the City Manager is authorized to sign the necessary documents in 
order to have Dana Construction complete the demolition and related work at 511 

Contractor Dana Construction Martin Bros. Rattliff Bros. Hayes Excavating
Address
511 W 5th St $6,500 $8,200 $8,900 $7,600
522 E 7th St $6,500 $7,852 $8,500 $8,400
315 Elliott St $3,000 $4,676 $4,800 $3,800
521 Cambridge Rd $1,500 $1,800 $2,800 $2,200
Individual Total $17,500 $22,528 $25,000 $22,000

Individual Bid Cost Analysis



W 5th St (house), 522 E 7th St (house), 315 Elliott St (garage), 521 Cambridge Rd 
(garage), in full compliance with the project documents prepared by City of 
Kewanee staff, and all applicable rules and regulations. 

 
Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law.   
 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 14th day of August 2017. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Melinda Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

 
 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Steve Looney     
Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



Everything You Need

Contractor Dana Construction Martin Bros. Rattliff Bros. Hayes Excavating

Address

511 W 5th St $6,500 $8,200 $8,900 $7,600

522 E 7th St $6,500 $7,852 $8,500 $8,400

315 Elliott St $3,000 $4,676 $4,800 $3,800

521 Cambridge Rd $1,500 $1,800 $2,800 $2,200

802 Rose St $1,500 $1,500 $3,300 $2,000

Individual Total $19,000 $24,028 $28,300 $24,000

Contractor Dana Construction Martin Bros. Rattliff Bros. Hayes Excavating

$18,500 $24,000 $27,900 $24,000

$500 $28 $400 $0

2.63% 0.12% 1.41% 0.00%

Address Contractor Bid

511 W 5th St Dana Construction $6,500

522 E 7th St Dana Construction $6,500

315 Elliott St Dana Construction $3,000

521 Cambridge Rd Dana Construction $1,500

802 Rose St Dana / Martin Bros. $1,500

Total $19,000

Fax 309-856-6001

Community Development Department
401 E Third St

Kewanee, IL. 61443

Phone 309-852-2611, Ext. 222

Low Bid Cost Analysis

This bid cost analysis shows all bid information received for the demoltions being considered. 

The second table shows all of the bundled bids that were submitted.  

The third table shows the lowest bid for each individual property.

Bid Cost Analysis

Bundled Bid For All Four Properties.

Bundled $ Discount compared to 

Individual Total

Bundled % Discount compared to 

Individual Total

Individual Bid Cost Analysis

Bundled Bid Cost Analysis



































                                  Item H 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 14, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5058 

AGENDA TITLE A resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
a right-of-way agreement with Geneseo 
Communications and declaring that this resolution 
shall be in full force immediately. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A  

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Provides an agreement for the placement of 
communications infrastructure in the city right of way. 

BACKGROUND City staff was approached by representatives from 
Geneseo Communications regarding the placement 
of fiber-optic cable in the City right of way to provide 
high speed internet to residential and business 
customers.  We continue to discuss potential 
language.     



                                  Item H 

SPECIAL NOTES Geneseo Communications provided an updated 
agreement providing for a $7,500 payment this year 
and an additional payment in the future should they 
undertake additional phases, but it did not contain 
language that the City wanted to see included in the 
agreement.  If we can agree on such language, the 
agreement will be proposed for consideration.  If not, 
we will ask that it be tabled.    

ANALYSIS N/A   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Resolution # 5058, proposed agreement 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 5058 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A RIGHT-OF-
WAY AGREEMENT WITH GENESEO COMMUNICATIONS AND DECLARING THAT 
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Kewanee has the right and power to regulate and permit the 
installation, operation and maintenance of communications infrastructure in the 
Public Right-of-Way within the City limits; and,  

WHEREAS, Geneseo Communications has requested pursuant to applicable federal and state 
law and regulations that the City of Kewanee enter into an agreement for the 
placement of communications infrastructure in the City-owned right-of-way in 
Kewanee; and, 

WHEREAS, The City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the residents, businesses, 
and visitors to enter into the proposed agreement to help provide the services, 
facilities, and equipment necessary to meet the future communications related 
needs for the community. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
KEWANEE IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute all necessary documents to put 

into effect the Communications Facilities franchise agreement with Geneseo 
Communications as contained in Attachment A hereto. 

 
Section 2 This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 
 
Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 14th day of August, 2017. 
 
    
ATTEST:   Steve Looney, Mayor 
    
    
  Melinda K. Edwards, City Clerk  
    

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Andrew Koehler     
Council Member Deann Schweitzer     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Mike Yaklich     

 



1
 

 

 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

This agreement is entered into by and between Cambridge Telcom, Inc. and Geneseo 
Communications, Inc., an Illinois corporation, herein "Cambridge Telcom and Geneseo Communication", 
and the City of Kewanee, Illinois, an Illinois municipal corporation, herein "the City", and collectively 
"the Parties". 

 
Whereas, the Parties have tentatively negotiated a contract whereby Company shall provide fiber service 
connection to the City, under certain terms and conditions, and wish to put said oral agreement in written 
form that was approved by the Kewanee City Board, at its regular meeting on _________. 

 
Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises as set forth herein, and for other good and 
valuable consideration, it is agreed by the Parties as follows: 

 
I. Cambridge Telcom or Geneseo Communications Obligation to Provide Services.  Company 

agrees to provide symmetrical fiber service connection to the City at its offices in the City Hall 
for contract price, located at 401 E 3rd Street, Kewanee Illinois. 

II. Cambridge Telcom or Geneseo Communications agrees to increase current service.  Company 
agrees to increase current broadband speed from 50meg to 100meg at no additional charge. 

III. Cambridge Telcom or Geneseo Communications agree to pay a $200 ROW permit fee for any 
construction outside this project   Work done outside Fiber to the Home project will require 
separate set of plans and individual ROW check per project. 

IV. Payment of lnfrastructure Maintenance Fee. Cambridge Telcom or Geneseo 
Communication agrees to pay a onetime municipal telecommunications infrastructure 
maintenance fee of $7500, for all fiber installation work performed for the present 
project, as identified as Stage 1 and Stage 2 in Attachment A, within the City right-of-
way.  Cambridge Telcom and Geneseo Communication agrees to pay an additional 
$7500 in the future for each additional similarly sized phase that Cambridge Telcom 
and Geneseo Communication chooses to install.    

V. Taxes. At such time as it becomes permissible by federal law or state statute, a tax for services 
provided through the use of Cambridge Telcom or Geneseo Communication‘s fiber optic lines in 
an amount set by federal law or state statute shall immediately go into effect. 

VI. Relocation. Cambridge Telcom or Geneseo Communication agrees to work with the 
City on any issues relating to current infrastructure to avoid issues for both parties 
up to and including relocating, at their expense, any infrastructure belonging to 
them that, due to its location, provides an extraordinary impediment to the repair 
or replacement of water, sewer, or stormwater lines already in existence prior to 
the execution of this agreement.   

 
At the time that Company wishes to make a fiber service connection in the future, it shall make application 
for a permit for said connection with the City. No Permit fee will be charged to Company for the issuance of 
said permit by the City. Company, however agrees to be in constant contact with City employees, to supply all 
documents of work area, and to comply with all City ordinances while working in the City right-of-way. 
Company further agrees to restore all work surfaces as best as possible to prior condition, and to seed all 
disturbed soil areas. 

 



2
 

 

4. Extending Service to Residential Areas. Company agrees to make its best efforts to extend fiber 
service to residential neighborhoods within the City, as fiber service is extended within City rights-of-way. 
Geneseo agrees to survey residential neighborhoods, and to extend fiber service to those neighborhoods 
where demand would justify the cost of extension. 

 
5. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties, their successors, and assigns. 

 
6. Authority to Execute. This Agreement has been executed by Cambridge and Geneseo by its duly 

authorized representative, with full authority to bind the company. This agreement has been signed by the 
City, pursuant to a vote of the Kewanee Board, at a lawful meeting of the Board, acting in open session. 

 
 
 
 

GENESEO COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
CAMBRIDGE TELCOM, INC. CITY OF KEWANEE 
 
By:_________________________ By: ___________________________ 
 

  



3
 

 

Attachment A 
 

 



  Item I 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 14, 2017 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5068 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution authorizing bidding on 
used ambulances from the Byron Ambulance Service.   

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Fire Department 

PRESENTER Fire Chief Shook 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$25,000-65,000 

Budget Line Item: 39-73-8410 

Balance Available $180,124.49 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Replace aging ambulance with a newer used unit with 
a heavier chassis and lower mileage. 



  Item I 

BACKGROUND The city of Kewanee currently operates 3 ambulances. All 
three of these ambulances are nearing or past their 
expected operational life span.  
Our current inventory: 
1king12 is our first out and newest ambulance built on a 
G4500 chassis type III. This unit has been plagued with 
issues repeatedly over the past year and has become 
unreliable at times. We are having issues with the unit 
going into “limp” mode to protect the engine and 
transmission resulting in the inability to travel faster than 
idle speed. It has been to the city mechanic and to D&D 
motors numerous times in the last month to try to track 
down and resolve the issue. The issue appears to be 
electrical or a computer in nature which makes the tracing 
and diagnosis of the problem more difficult. This 
ambulance currently has a loan still being paid on it with 2 
payments left of $10,000 each. One this November and 
then again next year. This unit was out of service for 
nonscheduled maintenance and repairs 19 times in the last 
12 months. 
 
Year:2010 
Mileage:97,134 
Engine hours: 8013 at a range of 30-50 miles (online 
research suggested range) per engine hour this equates to 
240,390 – 400,650 miles of wear. 
 
1king28 a ford 450 chassis type III that was placed into 
service as the front emergency ambulance in 2001 and now 
sits in the number two position for emergency calls. This 
ambulance is moved back to the first position when the 
front line ambulance is out of service. Since moving to the 
second position this unit has more than doubled its engine 
hours. This unit was out of service for nonscheduled 
maintenance and repairs 11 times in the last 12 months 
 
Year:2001 
Mileage:106,179 
Engine hours:13,266.9 at a range of 30-50 miles (online 
research suggested range) per engine hour this equates to 
398,007 - 663,345 miles of wear. 
 
1king16 a ford 350 sized chassis type III (van chassis) that 
was originally purchased to be an over the road transfer 
ambulance for the now defunct ambulance service. It is not 
designed to carry the weight or be used as our front line 



  Item I 
rescue ambulance. This unit was out of service for 
nonscheduled maintenance and repairs 1 time in the last 12 
months. 
Year:2005 
Mileage:119,725 
Engine hours: 4750.9 at a range of 30-50 miles (online 
research suggested range) per engine hour this equates to 
142,527 – 237,545 miles of wear. 



  Item I 

ANALYSIS Last October Chief Shook put in for an “AFG grant” to 
help with the purchase of a new ambulance. We knew 
going in that due to the amount of monies awarded for the 
purchase of ambulances nationwide that the odds were not 
in our favor. The award period for this grant began in 
March and will expire in September of this year with the 
city not being notified to date of a decision on our 
application.  
 
Currently in the fire department vehicle acquisition fund 
there is $180,124. A new ambulance at this time would run 
between $168,750 for a lower end 450 size class III (van 
chassis) to $250,000 for a 550 size class I (truck chassis) as 
was applied for in the department AFG grant. After talking 
with Rod, Kevin Newton and Vic the city mechanic, I feel 
we should consider moving towards a heavier duty chassis 
than the van chassis with all of the rescue gear and weight 
the ambulance is required to carry. Ideally, we would only 
be loading an ambulance with 60-70% of its weight 
capacity to reduce wear and tear. 1king12 is close to its 
max weight without a driver, EMT and patient on board 
producing more wear on the unit, shortening its life span, 
and increasing the number of repairs and upkeep costs.   
 
The front line ambulance (1king12) is currently 
experiencing a communication issue which has resulted in 
the transmission going into “limp mode”, as mentioned 
above.  The issue has been ongoing since the beginning of 
July.  Most recently, the ambulance has been at D&D for 
diagnostics for the last week and a half, with the issue 
being a “constant hard failure”.  With the breaks in 
service and the age of the ambulance fleet, I feel it is 
prudent as a “stop gap” measure to look at least one if not 
two used ambulances to get us through until such time that 
a new unit can be purchased.  
Byron Fire protection District is selling 2- 2010 Medtec 
ambulances.  Sealed bids are due by August 26, with the 
vehicles available for delivery in September. I plan to take 
a day and travel with either the city mechanic and or Kevin 
Newton/Rod to inspect these ambulances.  After review of 
the vehicles, a determination will be made regarding the 
worthiness of the vehicle.  Should the determination be 
favorable, I am requesting permission to bid on the 
ambulance/ambulances in an amount not to exceed 
$65,000.    



  Item I 

  

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Normal posting of meetings and agenda items 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Byron FD Ambulances 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  5068 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE BIDDING ON USED AMBULANCES FROM THE BYRON 
FIRE PR, AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE 
IMMEDIATELY. 

WHEREAS, The front line ambulance has experienced several repair needs, including being out of 
service for over a week recently; and 

WHEREAS,  The Fire Department has accumulated $180,124 in the acquisition fund for rolling 
stock replacement; and, 

WHEREAS,  The Bryon Illinois Ambulance Service has advertised the sale of 2 – 2010 
International Ambulances built by Medtec, with a minimum starting bid of $22,500 
each; and, 

WHEREAS, City staff has recommended inspecting the ambulances advertised by Byron Illinois 
Ambulance Service and bidding on them as a potential stop gap replacement measure 
to allow additional time for accumulating additional funds and budgeting for a new 
ambulance. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 The Fire Chief, City Mechanic, and/or his designee are hereby authorized to determine the 
state of the vehicle(s) advertised for sale by the Byron Illinois Fire Protection District.   

Section 2 Should the vehicle(s) be found to be in sound condition, making one or both of them ideal 
for the Kewanee Fire Department, the Fire Chief, or his designee, is authorized to bid on one 
or both of the advertised vehicles, in an amount not to exceed $65,000 total.  Such funds, 
should the bid be successful, would be paid from the acquisition fund, specifically 39-73-
840.  

Section 3 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval 
as provided by law. 

 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 14th day of August, 2017. 

ATTEST:   

   

Melinda Edwards, City Clerk  Steve Looney, Mayor 

  

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Steve Looney     

Council Member Deann Schweitzer     
Council Member Andrew Koehler     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Michael Yaklich     








	Agenda20170814
	Monday, August 14, 2017

	CM memo814
	COUNCIL MEETING 17-14
	The City Council met in Council Chambers at 7:00 PM with the City Clerk calling the meeting to order and the following answering to roll call:
	NEW BUSINESS

	ANNOUNCEMENTS

	Community Development EOM Report
	D & M
	7-Day
	Weeds
	Misc

	drnChlorideReportJuly2017
	drnWATER REPORT-JULY 2017
	July 17 calls for service-08042017074002
	July 17 UCR-08042017073857
	July 2017 ESDA
	Warrant List 20170814
	Relay for Life Proclamation 2017
	Staff Report -MTM Interest Program
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResMTMInterestPaymentProgram
	MTM Application
	Small Business Interest Payment Program
	Staff Report -Honorary Street Sign
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResRichardsHonorarySign20170814
	Honorary Street Sign Application
	Staff Report -Harbour Vacation
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	OrdVacatingAlley918Harbour
	Requested Vacation
	Staff Report -Beer Garden Fence Amendment
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	OrdBeer Garden Fence Amendment
	Staff Report - Fast Track Demos
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResDemoliton20170814
	Demo Bid Cost Analysis
	Demo Bids
	Staff Report - Geneseo Communications
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResGeneseoComm
	KewaneeGenComFiber
	Staff Report Ambulance
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	ResAmbulanceBids20170814
	Byron FD Ambulances

